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Independent Auditors Report

To the Members of Barque Hotels Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the FInancial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of Barque Hotels Private Limited (the “Company”) which
comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2023, and the statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act") in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2023, and its loss and other
comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Audifor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters,

Going concern

See Note 49 to the financial statements

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed In our audit

The financial statements of the Company have | Qur audit procedures included:
been prepared on a going concern basis.

* Enquiras with the management and those

Reglslamd Ofce:
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BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)

Barque Hoteis Private Limited

The Company has incurred a net loss of INR
905.80 million during the year ended 31 March
2023, and as of that date, the Company's
current liabilities exceed its current assets by
INR 464.05 million. Further, the Company has
contractual cash autfiows of INR 704,45 million
(excluding  future  contractual interest
payments) due within 12 months of the balance
sheet date.

The Company has prepared budgets / cash
flow forecasts, which involve judgements and
estimation around the sources of funds to meet
the financial obligations and cash flow
requirements.

Based on the projected future cash flows, the
Company expects to meet its future cash flow
requirements from:

* Expected increase in cash flow from
operations.

*  Awvailability of unrestricted cash and bank
balances and undrawn credit facilities.

* Financial and operational support by
SAMHI Hotels Limited (Holding Company).

tn view of the above, the management and the
Board of Directors believe that the Company
will be able to meet all its contractual
obligations and liabilities as and when they fali
due in near future.

Considering the subjectivity involved in the
assessment performed by the management
and board of directors of the Company, we
have identified the assessment of going
concern assumption as a key audit matter.

charged with governance regarding the
Company's ability to meet their obligations for
the next 12 months.

Assessed the appropriateness and
reasonableness of the cash flow forecasts for
the next 12 months.

Compared the forecasted statement of profit and
loss and cash flows with the Company's
business plans approved by the board of
directors of the Holding Company.

Evaluated the reasonableness of the
assumptions used in the cash flow forecasts
which includes occupancy rate, average room
rate etc. To consider forecasting risk we also
performed sensitivity analysis owver these
assumptions.

Assessed the reliability of cash flow forecasts
through a retrospective review of actual
performance in comparison to budgets.

Assessed the adequacy of disclosures in the
financial statements relating to uncertainties and
mitigation thereof.

Impairment assessment of Praperty Plant and Equipment, Capital Work in Progress, Right of

Use Assets and Other Intangible Assets

See Note 54 to the financial statements

The key audlt matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

As at 31 March 2023, the carrying value of

Our audit procedures included:

e 7 (LT Elee] (St SO (M e * Obtained an understanding of the Company’s

Use Assets and Other Intangible Assets S
amounts to INR 3,058.66 million. process for projecting the future cash flows for
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Ind

ependent Auditor’s Report (Continued}
Barque Hotels Private Limited

The Company periodically assesses whether
there is any indication that such Property Plant
and Equipment, CWIP, Right of Use Assets and
Other Intangible Assets at cash generating unit
(CGU) level may be impaired. If any such
indication exists, the Company estimates the
recoverable amount of these assets and if the
recoverable amount is less than its camying
amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its
recoverable amount. That reduction is recorded
as impairment loss.

To assess the recoverability of the CGU,
management is required to make significant
estimates and assumptions related to forecast
of future revenue, operating margins, exit
multiple and selection of the discount rates. The
Company used the discounted cash flow
approach to determine the recoverable value of
the CGU. These assumptions are of particular
importance due to the extent of judgment
involved, thus changes in these assumptions
could have a significant impact on the
recoverable value of the CGU.

Considering the inherent uncertainty,
complexity and  judgement involved,
impairment assessment of the above-
mentioned assets has been considered as a
key audit matter.

determining the recoverable amount of CGU.

* Tested the appropriateness of management's
basis to identify relevant CGUs for which
impairment testing is performed.

* Tested the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of key controls over the
impairment assessment process.

* Evaluated the key market related assumptions
such as discount rate and exit multiple.

* Assessed the reliability of cash flow forecasts
through a refrospective review of actual
performance in comparison to budgets.

* Evaluated the reasonableness of the
assumptions used in the cash flow forecasts
which includes occupancy rate, average room
rate etc. To consider forecasting risk we also
performed sensitivity analysis over these
assumptions.

* Assessed the approptiateness of the
disclosures made in the financial statements.

Revenue recognition

See Note 2.11 to financial statements

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Company is principally engaged as a hotel
owner. its revenye comprises hotel revenue
{including room revenue, food and beverage
revenue and recreation and other services
revenue) and space rental revenue.

The accounting policies for different revenue
streams are set out in Note 2.11 to the financial
statements.

Revenue is a key performance indicator of the
Company and there is risk of overstatement of
revenue due to fraud resuiting from pressure

Our audit procedures included:

* lested the Company's revenue recognition
accounting policies and its compliance with the
relevant accounting standard.

* Tested design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of the key controls over the
revenue recognition process.

* Performed substantive testing (including year-
end cut off testing) by selecting samples of
revenue transactions recorded during the year.
For such samples, verified the underlying
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independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Barque Hotels Private Limited

to achieve targets and eamings expectations. documents such as invoices, receipts etc.

* Tested the adequacy of disclosures relating to
the revenue recognition in the financial
statements.

Dther Information

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information inciuded in the Company's directors' report, but does not include
the financial statements and auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, cur responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have perfarmed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Considering the above, we have identified
revenue recognition as a key audit matter.

Management's and Board of Directors Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs, profit/ loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going cancern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibillties for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstaterments can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individualty or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to

Page 4 of 17
2%




BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Barque Hotels Private Limited

fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resuiting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of intemal control refevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i} of the Act, we are also respansible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disciosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concemn
basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence abtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events ar conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control

that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies {Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A" a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books. In respect of certain softwares/applications,
we are unable to comment on whether the back-up of the books of account and other relevant
books and papers in electronic mode has been kept on servers on a daily basis due to lack of
availability of sufficient information/ evidence.

c. The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
Page 5 of 17
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Confinued)
Barque Hotels Private Limited

statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act.

The matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph in "Annexure B” with respect
to adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Company, in our opinion, may have an adverse effect on the
functioning of the Company.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 18 April 2023 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2023
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

The qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the paragraph 2A.b. above.

With respect to the adequacy of the intemal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Repart in “Annexure B".

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of

the Companies {(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2023 on its financial
position in its financial statements - Refer Note 40 to the financial statements.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d (i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in

the Note 53 to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
{either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity{ies), inciuding foreign entities (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by ar on behalf of the Company (*Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in

the Note 53 to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from any
person(s) or entity{ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like an behaif
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

{iii} Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate

in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11(e}, as provided under (i) and (ii) above,
contain any material misstatement.

The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

As proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the Company
only with effect from 1 April 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and

Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable.
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independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Barque Hotels Private Limited

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 187(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
paid any remuneration to its directors during the year. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not
prescribed ather details under Section 197(16} of the Act which are required to be commentad upon

by us.
ForBSR&Co.LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

iy
oy
gE@Kumar

Partner
Place: Gurugram Membership No.: £09822
Date: 17 August 2023 ICAI UDIN:23509822BGWIUMB065
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Barque Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative

(B)
(i) (b)

©

(d)

(e)

(in) (@)

(b)

iii)

(@

details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.
The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification
of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified once
in every three years. In accordance with this programme, all property, plant and equipment were
physically verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties (other than immovable
properties where the Company is the lessee and the leases agreements are duly executed in
favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company.
However, original title deeds are under lien with lender. Therefore, we could not verify those title
deeds and have not received independent confirmation from lender for the same.

Accerding to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment
(including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and ruies made thereunder.

The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion,
the frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage as followed by
managemént were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on verification between the
physical stocks and the book records that were more than 10% in the aggregate of each class

of inventory.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in
excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from bank on the basis of security of current assets.
As informed to us and as per the terms of loan agreement of such limits, there is no requirement
to submit quarterly returns or statements with such bank.

According to the infoermation and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments, or provided
guarantee or advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, limited liability partnership or
any other parties during the year. The Company has provided security and has granted loans
to companies during the year, in respect of which the requisite information is as below. The
Company has not provided any security or granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to firms,
limited liability partnership or any other parties during the year.

Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Barque Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023

{Continued)

(b)

()

{d

(e)

U]

given to us the Company has provided security and ioans to companies as below:
Particulars Security (INR Loans {INR million}
million)

Aggregate amount during the year
Subsidiary* - 6.80
Others (fellow subsidiaries) 5,698.00 -

Balance outstanding as at halance sheet
date

Subsidiary* - 253.93
Others (fellow subsidiaries) 5,608.00 -

*As per the Companies Act, 2013

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, in our opinion the security given during the year and the terms and conditions
of the grant of loans provided during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of
the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in the case of loans given, in our opinion the repayment of
principal and payment of interest is not stipulated for the loan (as on 31 March 2023) of INR
253.93 million given to Paulmech Hospitality Private Limited (subsidiary of the Company)} which
is repayable on mutual consent of the Company and Paulmech Hospitality Private Limited. As
informed to us, the Company has not demanded repayment of the loan (including interest)
during the year. Thus, there has been no default on the part of the party to whom the money
has been lent. Further, the Company has nat given any advance in the nature of loan to any
party during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there is no overdue amount for mare than ninety days in respect
of loans given. Further, the Company has not given any advances in the nature of loans to any
party during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there is no loan granted falling due during the year, which has
been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to seitle the overdues of existing loans given
to same patrties.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion the Company has granted loans which are
repayable on mutual consent of the Company and Paulmech Hospitality Private Limited and
without specifying period of repayment to its related party as defined in Clause (76) of Section
2 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act"), details of which are given below:

Related Party (INR million)

Aggregate of loans to subsidiary
- Repayable on demand (A)
- Agreement does not specify any terms or period of

repayment {B) 253.93
Total (A+B) 253.93
Page 9 of 17
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Barque Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023
{Continued)

(iv)

v

(vi)

{vii) {a)

Related Party (INR million)

Percentage of loans to the total loans 100%

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, the Company has nat provided any guarantee as specified under
Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2023 (“the Act"). In respect of security provided and
loang granted by the Company, the provisions of Section 185 of the Act have been complied
with. The Company has complied with Section 186(1) of the Act. According to the information
and explanations given to us, the provisions of Section 186 (except for sub-section (1) of the
Section186) of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company since the Company
is engaged in the business of providing infrastructura) facilities.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
the public. Accordingly, clause 3{v) of the Order is not appiicable.

According to the information and expianations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the services
rendered by the Company. Accordingly, clause 3{vi) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and
Value Added Tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been
subsumed into GST.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax (GST)
Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Cess or other statutory dues have
generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities, though there have been
slight delays in a few cases of Income Tax, Employees State Insurance, Professional Tax and
Labour Welfare Fund. Further, in respect of GST, the Company has been irregular in depositing
tho oum due throughaut the year and amount is INR 0.50 nillivi.

As explained to us, the Company did not have any dues on account of Duty of Customs.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and
Services Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Cess or other statutory
dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2023 for a period of more than six manths from the date
they became payable, except as mentioned below:

Name of the Nature of the | Amount Period to Due date Date of
statute dues {INR which the payment
million) amount
relates
The Employees' | Provident 0.18 | March 2019 | 15 April | Not paid yet
Provident Fund 2019
Funds and | {Additional
Miscellaneous liability due to
Provisions Act, | Supreme
1952 Court
Judgement)
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financlal Statements
of Barque Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Gontinued)
Name of the Nature of the | Amount Period to Due date Date of
statute dues {INR which the payment
million) amount
relates
Central Goods | Interest liability 0.56 | April2021to | # Not paid yet
and Services | on Goods and March 2022
Tax Act, 2017 | Service Tax
and State
Goods and
Services  Tax
Act, 2017

# These amounts have fallen due at various points of time during the previous year.

(b)  According to the informatiocn and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, statutory dues relating to Goods and Services Tax, Provident
" Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Cess or other statutory dues which have not
been deposited on account of any dispute are as follows:;
Name of the Nature of the Amount (INR Period to Forum where
statute dues million) which the dispule is
amount relates pending
(Financial
Year)
Income Tax Act, | Penaity uls 0.12 | 2015-16 Commissioner
1961 271G of Income Tax
(Appeals)
Income Tax Act, | Penalty u/s 1.01 | 201617 Commissioner
1981 271C of Income Tax
{Appeals)
income Tax Act, | Addition to the 296.97* | 2016-17 Commissioner
1561 taxable income of Income Tax
(Appeals)
*Amount represents additions to taxable income
(vifi) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination

of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and
borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender. During the current year, the
Company has refinanced its non-convertible debentures issued to Sarvara Investment Fund |
through borrowings obtained from Citibank, N.A. and Citicorp Finarice {India) Limited. As at 31
March 2023, the Company also has interest free loan amounting to INR 2,467.33 million from
SAMHI Hotels Limited ('Parent Company") repayable at the option of the Company and
accordingly classified as "other equity". As this loan is repayable at the option of the Company,
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the Financial Statements
of Barque Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Continued)

(b)

{c)

(d)

(e)

Y]

(x) (a)

(b)

{xi) (a)

(b)

©

(xii)

(i)

(xiv) (a)

(b}

(xv)

there has been no default in repayment thereof.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given fo us, and the procedures performed by us,
and on an overall examination of the balance sheet of the Company, we report that the Company
has used funds raised on short-term basis aggregating to INR 344.73 million for long-term

purposes.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from
any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiary as defined under
the Act.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiary {(as defined under the Act).

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and an the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanaticns given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has
been noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section {12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule
13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3({xii) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of a public limited company and accordingly the
requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 177 of the Act are not applicable to the
Company. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on
the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties
are in compliance with Section 188 of the Act where applicable and details regarding such
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by applicable
accounting standards.

Based on information and explanations pravided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion,
the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its

business.

We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued til! date for the period
under audit.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
Page 12 of 17



BSR&Co.LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report an the Financial Statements
of Barque Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Continued)

(xvi) (a)

(b}

(©

(@

(xvii)

(eviii)

(xix)

(o0

not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3{xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

The Caompany is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicabie.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not part of any group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 as amended). Accordingly, the requirements of clause
3(xvi)(d) are not applicable.

The Company has incurred cash losses of INR 790.94 million in the current financial year and
INR 515.98 million in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

We draw attention to Note 49 to the financial statements which explains that the Company has
incurred losses in the current year and previous year and has accumulated losses as at 31
March 2023. Further, the Company's current liabilities exceed its current assets as at 31 March
2023 by INR 464.05 million.

Futher, it explains the management's assessment of going concern assumption and its assertion
that based on best estimates made by it, the Company will continue as a going concern i.e.
continue its operations and will be able to discharge its liabilities and realise its assets, for
forseeable future.

On the basis of the above and according to the information and explanations given to us, on
the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of
the evidence supporiing the assumptions, nothing has come te our attention, which causes us
to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company
is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they
fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is
not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date,
will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

The requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 135 are not applicable to the

%5
"
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BSR&Co LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Barque Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Continued)

Company. Accardingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xcq)(b) of the Crder are not applicable.

ForBSR& Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248WW/W-100022

0>

Shweta Kumar

Partner

Place: Gurugram Membership No.: 509822
Date: 17 August 2023 ICA! UDIN:23508822BGWIUMBS065
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BSR&Co.LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of Barque Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023

Report on the Internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(h) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Barque Hotels
Private Limited ("the Company”) as of 31 March 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, maintained adequate internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements as at 31 March 2023, based on the internai financial controls with
reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”) and
except for the possible effects of the material weakness described in “Basis for Qualified Opinion” section
of our report below, on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the Company's internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating effectively as of 31 March 2023.

We have considered the material weakness identified and reported below in determining the nature,

timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of 31 March 2023 financial statements of the Company,
and this material weakness does not affect our opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the following material
weakness has been identified in the operating effectiveness of the Company's internal controls with
reference to financial statements as at 31 March 2023:

The Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in respect of General
Information Technology Controls (GITCs) and automated Information Technology (IT) Application
Controls over the Company’s Oasis application software were not operating as at 31 March 2023. This
could potentially result in understatement/ overstatement of revenue from operations.

A ‘material weakness' is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial control with
reference to financial statements, such that there is reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of
the company's annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

Management's and Board of Directers’ Responsibilities for internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financiat controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and compieteness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to

Page 15 0f 17
’/




BSR &Co.LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of Barque Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023
{Continued)

an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with sthical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reagonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and if such conirols operated effectively in all material

respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference ta financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of interal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial staterments, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our qualified audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controis with reference .to financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Contrcls with Reference to Financlal Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's intemal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonabie assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financlal Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of intemnal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
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BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report on the financial statements
of Barque Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Continued)

changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the paolicies or procedures may deteriorata.

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartared Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

‘9 hv;reta Kumar

Partner
Place: Gurugram Membership No.: 509822
Date: 17 August 2023 ICAl UDIN:23509822BGWIUME065
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rque Hotels Private Limited
IN Us5101 DL2008PTCT 75957

Balance Sheet a5 ac 31 March 2023
Al amounis in Rupees milfions, unfess otherwise siated)

ASSETS

“Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Capital work-in-progress
Right to use assets

Other intengible assets
Finencia] assets

Investment in subsidiary
Loans
Other financial assets

Income tax assets {net)
Other non-current assets

Total nen-current asaets

urrent assets

"~ Inventorics

L

Finencial assels

Trade receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents above
Other financial assets

Other current assets

Assets held for sale
mal current agsets

TOTAL ASSETS

Elity
Equity share capital
Other equity

otal equity
labilities

UITY AND LIABILITIES

Non-current Labilities

5

Financial liabilities

Borrowings

Lease liabilities

Trade payables

- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

- Iotai outstanding dues of ereditors other than micro enlerprises and small
snterprises
Provisions
Oiher non-curreni Liabilities

T'otal non- current liabilities

" Current liabilities

[

Firancial liabilitics

Borrowings

Lease liabilitics

Trade payables

- lotal outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enierprises

- todal outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises
and small enterprises

Other financial liabilities

Other current liabilities
Provisions

T'otal eurrent liabilities

Total Kabilities

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

The notes from Mote | to Note 56 form an integral part of these financial s1alements

As per our report of cven date attached

tor BSR& Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 101243WW-100022

5
.

&
Shweta Kumar

Partner
Membership No.; 509822

Place: Gurugram
Date: 17 August 2023

Note

L - R ] o L L L

=]

i2
13
14
15
15

17

18
19

21
22

24

25
26
27

28
29
30

DIN: 06813081

Place: Gurugram
Date: 17 August 2023

For and on behaif of Board of Directors of
Barque Hotels Private Limited

Date: 17 August 2023

AS Bt Asat
31 March 2623 31 March 2022
2, 70805 2,856.48
14.89 1063
32414 334.95
11.58 1516
T1.00 71.00
25393 220,67
120.28 67.74
838 6.37
459 i4.70
3,516.84 350770
306 200
62.26 2373
4797 71.62
823 64.83
0.81 0.9%
7811 9717
200.34 260,33
70.00 70.00
17034 330.33
3.787.18 3,928.03
38375 383.75
(161.91) 735.23
221.84 1,118.98
2,604 56 2,292.39
143.82 165.09
- 988
337 4.95
77.19 §242
2,830.94 2,554.73
483.72 =
47.31 54.56
1.27 1.69
146.01 167.63
2564 263
26.57 25.10
338 27
7440 25432
3.565.04 2,809.05
3,787.18 3,928.03
N
Manish Bhagat Ashish Jain
Direcror Compuany Secretary
DIN: 08052409 Membership No.: A10088
Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram

Date: 17 August 2023



quue Hotels Private Limited

CIN US5101DL200SPTC175957
taterment of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2023
I amoumts in Rupees millions, unless atherwise stated)

I
,_{nmme

fevenue from operations
{7ther income
Total income

E*prenses

j-ost of materials consumed

Employee benefits expetise
Other expenses

Earnings before finance cost, depreciation and amortisation, exceptional
items and tax

{Finance costs
Depreciation and amortisation expense

]

!Loss before exceptional items and tax
Exceptional items
Loss before tax

Tax expense
Zurrent tax
Jeferred tax

‘ ]‘uss for the year
Other comprehensive (lass)income
__dtems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Re-measurement (loss)/gain on defined benefit obligations
_ J- Income tax relating to items mentioned above

_L..ftllcr comprehensive {loss)/income, net of tax

otal comprehensive loss for the year

.Earnings/(losses) per eqaity share (Face value of INR 10 each)
f_Basic{lN]{}
. Diluted (INR)

-The notes from Note ! to Note 56 form an integral part of these financial statements.

L'f\s per our repart of even date attached

Chartered Accountanis
ICAL Firm Registration No.; [01248W/W-100022

o

[-‘Far BSR & Co. LLP

¢ta Kumae
Parmer
Membership No : 509822

Place: Gurugram
Date: 17 August 2023

Note

31
32

33
34
a7

35
36

33

34

39

DIN: 06813081

Flace: Gurugram
Date; 17 August 2023

For and on bebalf of Board of Directors of
Barque Hotels Private Limited

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
1,420.51 546.98
3827 33.85
1,458.78 580.83
100,77 4782
191.96 143.49
709.78 38927
_1,002.51 380.58
456.27 0.25
1,186.70 469.39
174.96 183.00
1,361.66 658.39
(905.39) (658.14)
- (2.34)
{905.39) {655.89)
(905.39) (655.80)
{0.41) 0.08
{0.41) 0.08
{905.80) (655.72)
(23.59) (19.25)
(23.59) (19.25)
b
-~
Manish Rhagat Ashish Jain
Director Compary Secreiary

DIN: 08092409

Place: Gurugram
Date: 17 August 2023

Membership No.- A1008R

Place: Gurugram
Date: 17 August 2023



}arque Hotels Private Limited
CIN US5101DL200BPTC175957
Statewnent of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2023
All amounts in Rupees willions, unless otherwise stated)

A.

Cash flows from operating activitles
Loss before tax
Adjusiments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Loss allowance for trade receivables
Finance costs
Interest income
Ameortisation of income received in advance
{iain on lease assels
Net gain on fair valuation of equity component of convertible PIK obligation
Provisions/ liabilities no tonger required written back
Government grant written off
Unwinding of discount on security deposits
Operating profit/{{loss) befare working capital changes
Increase in inventories
Increase in trade receivabies
Decrease in other financial assets
Decrease in other assets
{Decrease)fincresse in trade payables
Increase f (decrease) in other Liabilities
Increase f {decrease) in provisions
Increase / {decrease) in other financial liabilities
Cash gemerated from operations
Income taxes (paid) - net
Net ensh geneeated from/ (used in) operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and capital work-in progress
Laan provided to subsidiary
Bank deposits matured
Bank deposits made
Interest received
Net cash penerated Erom/{used in) investing zetivities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from long term bormowings
Repayment of long term borrowings
Proceeds from current borrowings (net of repayment}
Lease payments
Interest free loans received ffom helding compary
Finence costs paid

Net cash gewerated (used ju)from financing activities

Net (decrease)increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

For the year emded For the year ended
3 March 2023 31 March 2022
(905.39) {658.80)
174,96 189.00
035 0.40
1,186.70 169.39
(10.26) (4.25)
(5.23) (5.23)
- (2.3
{11.34) (14.40)
(263} =
= {2.78)
(681 {6.8%)
420,35 (32.90)
{1.06) {2.00)
(33.96) @00
0.36 17.93
33.19 14.23
(35.09) 49.95
277 (29.76)
063 (1.59)
1699 (0.92}
399.24 0,53
(1.58) (2.83)
397.66 {1.90)
{10.38) (19.07)
(6.80) (5.10)
7531.43 §2.51
(740.50) (54.29)
642 483
0.13 (1.32)
2,717.60 2,764.50
(2,850.00) (2,697.59)
36718 -
(56.91) (57.38)
20.00 254.55
{619.56) (214.48)
(421.69) 49.60
(23.85) 4638
71.62 25.24
47.77 .62




Barque Hotels Private Limited

CIN US5101DL200SPTC1 75057

Statement of Cash Flows for the year emded 31 March 2023
A amoants in Rupees millions. unless otherwise stated)

Nuoies to Statement of Cash Flows

* L Components of cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand
‘ Balances with banks :
= ON CUITent accounts
T Bank deposits with original maiurity of less than 3 months

iL  Recoociliation of borrow(ngs (laclsding interest accrued) to cash flow from Rnancing activities

Opening Balance

Changes from financing cash Mows
Proceeds from long term bomrowings
Repayment of long term borrowings

Praceeds from current borrowings (net of repayment)
Finance cost paid

Other non cash changes

Finance cost expense

Equity component of convertible -PIK obligation
Cleosing Balanee

ii. For movement in lease liabilities, refer Note 47

Cash Flows"

The notes from Note 1 10 Note 56 form an integral part of these financial slatements.
As per our reporl of even date attached

ForBS R & Co, LLP

Chavriered Accountants
[CAI PFinm Registration No ; 101248'W/W-100022

As at As At
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
1.63 1.36
4614 4276
= 27.50
47.77 71.62
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
2,292.39 2,706.36
271760 2,764.50
(2,850.00) (2,697.59)
367.18 -
(612.56) (214.48)
1.186.70 469.39
- (73580}
3,004.31 2,292.39

Manish Bhagat

For and on behalf of Board of Direclors of
Barque Hotels Private Limited

weta Kumar
Partner

Membership No.; 509822

Place: Gurugram
Date: 17 August 2023

Direcior

The Cash Flows from operating activities section in Statement of Cash Flews has been prepared in accordence with the Indirect Method' as set oul in the Ind AS 7 "Statement of

~

Ashish Jain

DIN: 06813081

Place: Gurugram

DIN: 08092400

Place: Gurugram
Date: 17 August 2023 Date: 17 August 2023

Company Secrelary
Membership No.: A10088

Place: Gurugram
Date: 17 August 2023
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Barque Hotels Private Limited

CIN: U55101DL20GSPTC175957

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

1.1 Corporate information

Barque Hotels Private Limited (‘the Company’) is a Company domiciled in India. The Company was
incorporated in India on 27 March 2008 as per the provisions of Indian Companies Act and is limited by

shares.

The Company is a hotel development and investment company with focus on operating internationally
branded hotels across key cities in the Indian sub-continent.

Presently, the Company has twelve hotels under it, out of which eleven hotels (Holiday Inn Express -
Ahmedabad, Bangalore Whiteficld, Pune Hinjwadi, Gurugram, Pimpri, Hyderabad Hi-tech, Nashik,
Chennai OMR, Hyderabad Banjara Hills, Bangalore Tumkur Road and Caspia Pro - Noida) are
operational and one hotel is under development.

1.2 Basis of preparation

A,

Statement of compliance

These {inancial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013, (the ‘Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with the resolution of the Company’s
Board of Directors on 17 August 2023.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s functional
currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest millions, unless otherwise indicated.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items:

Items Measurement Basis
Financial assets and liabilities i.e., Fair Value
derivative instruments
Equity component of convertible PIK Fair Value
obligation

Also refer Note 49 for going concern basis of accounting used by the management.
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D.

Significant acconnting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with [nd AS requires management to make
Jjudgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and the accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty
about the assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that may require material adjustment to
the carrying value of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods

affected.

The following are the significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in apptying
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial

statements:
Provisions and contingencies

The assessments undertaken in recognizing provisions and contingencies have been made in accordance
with Ind AS 37, ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’, which involves key
assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources.

ii) Useful lives and impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment, capital work-in

progress, right to use assets and other intangible assets

The estimated useful lives and recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment, capital work-in
progress, right to use assets and other intangible asscts are based on estimates and assumptions
regarding the expected market outlook, expected future cash flows, obsolescence, demand, competition
and known technological advances. The Company reviews the useful lives and recoverable amounts of
property, plant and equipment, capital work-in progress, right to use assets and other intangible assets
at the end of each reporting date.

ili) Employee benefit obligations

Employee benefit obligations (gratuity and compensated absences) are determined using actuarial
valuations, which involves determination of the discount rate, salary growth rate and mortality rates.
Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation
is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

The fair values of financial instruments recorded in the balance sheet in respect of which quoted prices
in active markets are not available are measured using valuation techniques. The inputs to these models
are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment
is required in establishing fair values.

Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in
assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. Also, refer
Note 43 for further disclosures.
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v)

vi)

Recognition of deferred tax assets/liabilities

Recognition of deferred tax assets/liabilities involves making judgements and estimations about the
availability of future taxable profit against which carried forward tax losses can be used. A deferred tax
asset is recognised for unused tax losses and deductible temporary differences, to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be utilized.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Leases
Critical judgements in delermining the lease period:

Ind AS 116 required lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted
with an option to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably certain. The
Company makes an assessment on the expected lease term on a lease-by-lease basis and thereby
assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any options to extend or terminate the contract will be
exercised. In evaluating the lease term, the Company considers factors such as any significant leasehold
improvements undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the termination of the lease and the
importance of the underlying asset to the Company’s operations taking into account the location of the
underlying asset and the availability of svitable alternatives. The lease term in the future possible
periods are reassessed to ensure that the lease term reflects the current economic circumstances.

Critical judgements in determining the discount rate:

The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being
evaluated or for the portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.

Current and non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current
classification.

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria;

- it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal
operating cycle.

- it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

- it is expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting date; or

- it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for
at least 12 months after the reporting date.

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

- it is expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;

- it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

- it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

- the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result
in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.
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Current assets/liabilities include current portion of non-current financial assets/liabilities respectively.
All other assets/ liabilities are classified as non-current. Deferred tax assets and liabilities (if any) are

classified as non-curtrent assets and liabilities.
Operating cycle

Based on the nature of the operations and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and
their realization in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve
months for the purpose of current/non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

F. Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values,
for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. The Company has an established control
framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. The finance team has overall responsibility
for overseeing all significant fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair values, and reports directly
to the Holding Company’s Chief Financial Officer.

They regularly review significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party
information is used to measure fair values then the finance team assesses the evidence obtained from
the third parties to support the conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS,
including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

e In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
* In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as
far as possible. Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the
inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

» Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

» Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

* Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair

value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety at the same level of the
fair value hierarchy as the lJowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in Note 43.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies

1) Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment including capital work in progress are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses if any.

Cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for use as at the reporting date are disclosed as capital
work-in-progress.

Cost comprises the purchase price, import duties and other non-refundable taxes or levies, borrowing
costs if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working
condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring
the site on which it is located. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase

price.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different usefill lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs and disposal

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and equipment is added to its book value
only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the
Company. All other expenses on existing property, plant and equipment, including day-to-day repair
and maintenance expenditure, are charged to the profit or loss for the period during which such expenses
are incurred.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of property, plant and equipment are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized
in the profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated using the straight-line method (SLM) to
allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over their estimated useful lives (determined by the
management based on technical estimates). The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. In case of a revision, the unamortized
depreciable amount is charged over the remaining useful life.

Depreciation on addition/ (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e., from/ (up to) the date on which
the asset is ready for use/ (disposed off).
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2)

The management estimate of the useful life of various categories of assets is as follows:

Asset Category® Useful Life Useful life as per
(Years) Schedule IT to the
Companies Act, 2013
{Years)
Building 15-60 60
Computers and accessories 3 3-6
Piant and machinery 5-20 15
Furniture and fixtures 8 10
Office equipment 5-10 5

* For the above class of assets, the management based on internal technical evaluation, has determined
that the useful lives as given above best represent the period over which management expects to use
these assets. Hence, the useful lives of few assets included in the above asset categories are different

from the useful lives as preseribed under Part C of Schedule 11 to the Companies Act 2013.

Freehold land is not depreciated.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property plant and equipment’s are
reviewed by management at each reporting date and adjusted prospectively, as appropriate.

Transition to Ind AS

The Company had elected to use the fair value of all the items of property, plant and equipment on the
date of transition i.e., 1 April 2015, and designate the same as deemed cost. Fair value was determined

by obtaining an external third-party valuation, a level 3 valuation technique.

Intangible assets

Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company are measured initially at cost. After initial
recognition, an intangible asset is carried at its cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated

impairment loss, if any.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits from the
specific asset to which it relates.

Amortisation

Intangible assets of the Company represents computer software and are amortized using the straight-
line method over the estimated useful life (at present three to ten years). The amortization period and
the amortization method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. If the expected useful life of
the asset is significantly different from previous estimates, the amortization period is changed

accordingly.
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Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the profit or loss
when the asset is derecognized.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financiod assets

Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other
financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

All financial assets (except trade receivable without a significant financing component) are initially
recognised at fair value. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer
a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
of a financial instrument on initial recognition is generally its transaction price (that is, the fair value of
the consideration given or received). However, if there is a difference between the transaction price and
the fair value of financial instruments whose fair value is based on a quoted price in an active market
or a valuation technique that uses only data from observable markets, the Company recognizes the
difference as a gain or loss at inception (‘day 1 gain or loss’). In all other cases, the entire day 1 gain or
loss is deferred and recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the life of the transaction until
the transaction matures or is closed out. A trade receivable without a significant financing component
is initially measured at the transaction price.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value
through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

it. Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial asseis

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at
- Amortised cost
- Debt investment measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCTI)

- Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
- Equity investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
Financial assets are not reclassified snbsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:
— the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows; and
— the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt investment is measure at FVOCT if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated
& C,
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as at FVTPL:
— the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and
— the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are
measured at FVTPL, This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company
may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at
amortised cost or at FVOCI or at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets. Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is
held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed, and information is
provided to management. The information considered includes:

— the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice.
These include whether management’s strategy focuses on eaming contractual interest income,
maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the
duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale
of the assets;

— how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s management;

— the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and how those risks are managed; and

— the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such
sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not
considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company’s continning recognition of the assets.

Financial assets. Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and

interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial

recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk

associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular pericd of time and for other basic

lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin,

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the

Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the

financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash

Tlows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;

- prepayment and exiension features;

- terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse
features).
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Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses,
asscts at including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss.
FVTPL

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment
losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is
recognised in profit or loss.

Debt investments | These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income
at FVOCI under the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses
and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses
are recognised in OCL On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in
QCI are reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial assets
at amortised cost

Equity These asscts are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are
investments recognised as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents
at FVOCI a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses

are recognised in OCI and are not reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is
classifted as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such
on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses,
including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is
also recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition

Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in
which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet but
retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred

assets are not derecognized.
Financial liabilities
The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or

cancelled or expire.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows
under the modified terms are substantially different. [n this case, a new financial liability based on the
modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.
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. Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet
when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and
it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Compound financial instruments

Compound financial instruments issued by the Company comprise compulsorily convertible debentures
denominated in INR that can be converted to equity shares at the option of the holder, when the number
of shares to be issued is fixed and does not vary with changes in fair value.

The liability component of a compound financial instrument is initially recognised at the fair value of a
similar liability that does not have an equity conversion option. The equity component is initially
recognised at the difference between the fair value of the compound financial instrument as a whole and
the fair value of the liability component. Any directly attributable transaction ¢osts are allocated to the
liability and equity components in proportion to their initial carrying amounts.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component of a compound financial instrument is
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The equity component of a compound
financial instrument is not remeasured subsequently.

Interest related to the financial liability is recognised in profit or loss (unless it qualifies for inclusion in
the cost of an asset). In case of conversion at maturity, the financial liability is reclassified to equity and
no gain or loss is recognised.

vi. Interest free loans

Vik,

The Company has obtained interest free loan from its holding company. Such interest free loans are
measured at fair values determined using a present value technique with inputs that include future cash
flows and discount rates that reflect assumptions that market participants would apply in pricing such
loans. The difference between the transaction price and the fair value of such loans have been recognised
as equity component in the books of the Company. The loan component is subsequently measured at
amortised costs and interest expense is recognised using effective interest rate method. On modification
in the terms of such loans wherein they became repayable at the option of the borrower resulting in it
becoming perpetual debt such loans including accrued interest up to the date of modification have been

treated as other equity.
Non-convertible debentures

The Company has issued non-convertible debentures (NCDs) which have been treated as financial
liability in books and carried at amortised cost.

Further, the Company has identified the redemption right as equity component. As the risks associated
with the underlying variable are not closely related to the host instrument, the equity component has
been separately accounted for from the NCDs in other equity. The equity component has been fair
valued through profit or loss at each balance sheet date.
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viil. Modification of financial assets and liabilities

4

Bar,

Financial assets:

If the terms of a financial asset are modified, the Company evaluates whether the cash flows of the
modified asset are substantially different. If the cash flows are substantially different, then the
contractual rights to cash flows from the original financial asset are deemed to have expired. In this
case, the criginal financial asset is derecognized and a new financial asset is recognized at fair value.

If the cash flows of the modified asset carried at amortized cost are not substantially different, then the
modification does not result in derecognition of the financial asset. In this case, the Company
recalculates the gross carrying amount of the financial asset and recognizes the amount arising from
adjusting the gross carrying amount as a modification gain or loss in profit or loss.

Financial Liabilities:

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified, and the cash flows of the
modified liability are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified
terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

. Concessional overdraft facility

The Company has availed overdrafi facility from banks at an interest rate lower than the market rate,
because its holding company has pledged fixed deposit with the banks for this overdraft facility. This
difference between the interest rate charged by the bank and market rate is treated as deemed equity
provided by the holding company, with a corresponding debit to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Impairment

Impairment of financial instruments

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets measured at
amortised cost.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and debt
securities at Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-
impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of

the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

-a breach of contract such as a default or being past due for 90 days or more;

- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not consider
otherwise;

-it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; or

-the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties,
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The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses, except for
the following, which are¢ measured as 12 month expected credit losses
- debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and
- other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over
the expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.
Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit
losses.

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument.

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the
instrument is less than 12 months).

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum
contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and
informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information. '

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Company
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance
on portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default
rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At
every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-

looking estimates are analysed.
Presentation of allowance for expected credit ipsses in the balance sheet

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets.

For debt securities at FVOCI, the loss allowance is charged to profit or loss and is recognised in OCL.
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Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that
there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that
the debtor docs not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay
the amounts subject to the write- off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject
to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts

due.
Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at cach reporting date if there is any indication of
impairment based on internal/external factors. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s (or cash generating unit’s) fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and risks specific to the asset (or cash generating unit (CGU)).

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Impairment
loss recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated, if any to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU
(or group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not subsequently reversed. In respect of other assets for
which impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods, the Company reviews at each reporting
date whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such
a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had

been recognised.

Inventories

Inventories which comprise stock of food and beverages is carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost of inventories comprises all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventory to their present location and condition. In determining the cost, first in first out {"FIFQ™)
method is used. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs to make the sale.
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6)

7

8)

9

pand Loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants and subsidies

Grants and subsidies from the government are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that (i)
the Company will comply with the conditions attached to them, and (ii) the grant/subsidy will be
received.

Export Promotion Capital Goods Scheme

The grant or subsidy received to compensate the import cost of assets, subject to an export obligation
is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in ratio of fulfilment of associated export obligations,

Service Exports from india Scheme (SEIS)

The scheme entitles the Company to receive SEIS licenses basis the annual earnings in foreign currency.
These licenses can be utilised by the Company or sold in the market, The grant is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss on an accrual basis at realizable value.

Provisions

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation, in respect of which a rcliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance
cost. Provisions are reviewed by the management at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the
current best estimates at each reporting date.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, or a present obligation whose amount
cannot be estimated reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its

existence in the financial statements.
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences arising from foreign
currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs) incurred by
the Company in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to
acquisition and/or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of cost of that asset. Capitalisation of borrowing costs
is suspended in the period during which active development is delayed due to interruption, other than
temporary interruption. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit
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10) Employee benefits

(a) Short-term employee benefits

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services are classified
as short-term employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, short-term bonus and ex-
gratia. The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits to be paid in exchange for employee
services is recognised as an expense as the related service is rendered by employees.

(b} Post-employment benefits

(c)

Defined contribution plan — Provident fund and Employee state insurance

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays specified
contributions and has no obligation to pay any further amounts. Provident fund scheme and employee
state insurance are defined contribution schemes. The Company makes specified monthly contributions
towards these schemes. The Company's contributions are recorded as an expense in the statement of
profit and loss during the period in which the employee renders the related service. If the contribution
already paid is less than the contribution payable under the scheme for service received before the
balance sheet date, the deficit payable under the scheme is recognized as a liability afier deducting the
contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services
received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-
payment will lead to a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Defined benefit plan — Gratuity

The Company's gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The present value of obligations under such
defined benefit plans are determined based on actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary
using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to an
additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final
obligation.

The obligation is measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used
for determining the present value of obligation under defined benefit plans, are based on the market
yields on government securities as at the balance sheet date, having maturity period approximating to
the terms of related obligations.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assurnptions are recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income
and are never reclassified to profit or loss. Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation
resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognized immediately in the profit or loss as past
service cost.

Other long-term employee benefit obligations ~ Compensated absences
The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilized accrued compensated absences and utilize

it in future service periods or receive cash compensation on termination of employment. Since the
compensated absences do not fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which
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the empioyees render the related service and are also not expected to be utilized wholly within twelve
months after the end of such period, the benefit is classified as a long-term employee benefit. The
Company records an obligation for such compensated absences in the period in which the employee
renders the services that increase this entitlement. The obligation is measured on the basis of
independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. Re measurements as a result of
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in the profit or loss.

11) Revenne recognition

Revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to a customer i.e. on transfer of control of the
goods or service to the customer. Revenue is net of indirect taxes and discounts.

Contract asset represents the Company’s right to consideration in exchange for services that the
Company has transferred to a customer when that right is conditioned on something other than the

passage of time.

When there is unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage of time is required to do invoicing,
the same is presented as Unbilled revenue.

A contract liability is recognized if a payment is reccived or a payment is due (whichever is earlier)
from a customer before the Company transfers the related goods or services and the Company is under
an obligation to provide only the goods or services under the contract. Contract liabilities are recognized
as revenue when the Company performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods
or services to the customer).

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Room revenue, sale of food and beverages and recreation services

Revenue is recognized at the transaction price that is allocated to the performance obligation. Revenue
comprises room revenue, sale of food and beverages, recreation and other services relating to hotel
operations. Revenue is recognised upon rendering of the services and sale of food and beverages which
is recognised once the rooms are eccupied, food and beverages are sold and other services have been
provided as per the contract with the customer.

Space rental

Space rental income comprise amount earned for use of hotel premises space by other parties. The
income is recognised when services are rendered as per the terms of the contract and no significant
uncertainty exists regarding collection of consideration.

12) Recognition of dividend income, interest income or expense

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date on which the Company’s right to receive
payment is established.
Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.

The “effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts

through the expected life of the financial instrument to:
Bar,
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the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or
the amortised cost of the financial liability.

In caleulating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortised cost of the [iability.
However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest
income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset, If
the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.

13) Foreign currency translation

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the profit
or loss, within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the profit or
loss on a net basis.

14) Income taxes

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent
that it relates to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year
and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax
reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty,
if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable rightto set off
the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or
simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.
Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits.

Defetred tax is not recognised for
- temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that
is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the
time of the transaction;
- taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
gy ilable against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future
ar
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taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Company
recognises a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or
there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such
deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets — unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each
reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable respectively
that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is seftled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the

reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets and Company intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or such
tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultancously.

15) Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker (CODM).

Identification of segment

In accordance with Ind AS 108, “Operating Segments”, the operating segments used to present segment
information are identified on the basis of information reviewed by the CODM to allocate resources to
the segments and assess their performance. An operating segment is a component of the Company that
engages in business activities from which it earns revenues and incurs expenses, including revenues
and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Company’s other components.

16) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted eamnings per share, the profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are
adjusted  for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares, except where the results would be anti -
dilutive.

17) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises of cash at banks and on hand, cheques on hand and short-term,
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.
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18} Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets held for sale comprising assets and liabilities are classified as held for sale if it is
highly probable that they will be recovered primarily through sale rather than through continuing use.

Such assets are penerally measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to
seil.

Any impairment loss on a disposal group is allocated first to goodwill, and then to the remaining assets
and liabilities on a pro rata basis, except that no loss is allocated to inventories, financial assets, deferred
tax assets, employee benefit assets, investment property or biological assets, which continue to be
measured in accordance with the Company’s other accounting policies.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale and subsequent gains and losses on re-
measurement are recognized in profit or loss.

Once classified as held for sale, propetty, plant and equipment are no longer depreciated.

19) Measurement of earnings before finance cost, depreciation and amortisation, exceptional items
and tax (EBITDA)

The Company has elected to present earnings before finance cost, depreciation and amortisation,
exceptional items and tax (EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face of the Statement of Profit and
Loss. The Company measures EBITDA on the face of profit/ (loss) from continuing operations. In the
measurement, the Company does not include finance costs, depreciation and amortisation expense,
exceptional items and tax expense.

20) Exceptional items

On certain occasions, the size, type or incidence of an item of income or expense, pertaining to the
[ ordinary activities of the Company is such that its disclosure improves the understanding of the
i performance of the Company. Such income or expense is classified as an exceptional item and
accordingly, disclosed in the financial statements.

L' 21) Leases: Transition to Ind AS 116

Ministry of Corporate affairs (“MCA™) through Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules, 2019 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, had issued Ind
AS 116 “Leases” which replaced the existing lease standard, Ind AS 17 and other interpretations. Ind
AS 116 sets out the principles, for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases
for both lessors and lessees. It introduces a single, on- balance sheet leases accounting model for leases.

Company as a Lessee

On inception of a contract, the Company (as a lessee) assesses whether it contains a lease. A contract is
or contains a lease when it conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time

Biar} exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an
e
2,
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identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset
(ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period
of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and
a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a
term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low
value leases, the Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease.

Lease contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The Company allocates payments
in the contract to the lease and non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices and
applies the lease accounting model only to lease components.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for initial direct costs incurred, lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, any asset restoration obligation, and less any lease incentives received. They are subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Right-of-use assets are also
adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities. Unless the Company is reasonably certain to obtain
ownership of the leased assets or renewal of the leases at the end of the lease term, recognised right-of-
use assets are depreciated to a residual value over the shorter of their estimated useful life or lease term.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including ‘in-substance fixed’ payments) and
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, less any lease incentives receivable. ‘In-
substance fixed’ payments are payments that may, in form, contain variability but that, in substance,
are unavoidable. In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily

determinable.

The lease term includes periods subject to extension options which the Company is reasonably certain
to exercise and excludes the effect of early termination options where the Company is not reasonably
certain that it will exercise the option. Minimum lease payments include the cost of a purchase option
if the Company is reasonably certain it will purchase the underlying asset after the lease term.

Lease liabilities are re-measured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset if the
Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option and

any lease modification.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the
period over which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs. In respect of variable leases
which guarantee a minimum amount of rent over the lease term, the guaranteed amount is considered
to be an “in-substance fixed’ lease payment and included in the initial calculation of the lease liability.
Payments which are “in-substance fixed’ are charged against the lease liability.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments
have been classified as financing cash flows.

AN
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22)

23)

Company as a Lessor

At the inception of the lease the Company classifies each of its leases as either an operating lease or a
finance lease. The Company recognises lease payments received under operating leases as income on a
straight- line basis over the lease term. In case of a finance lease, finance income is recognised over the
lease term based on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the lessor’s net investment
in the lease. When the Company is an intermediate lessor it accounts for its interests in the head lease
and the sub-lease separately. It assesses the lease classification of a sub-lease with reference to the right-
of-use asset arising from the head lease, not with reference to the underlying asset. If a head lease is a
short-term lease to which the Company applies the exemption described above, then it classifies the

sub-lease as an operating lease.

If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, the Company applies Ind AS 115 Revenue
from contracts with customers to allocate the consideration in the contract.

Investment in subsidiary

Investment in subsidiary is carried at cost, less any impairment in the value of investment, in these
separate financial statements,

Expenditure

Expenses are accounted for on the accrual basis and provisions are made for all known losses and
liabilities.
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Investment in subsidiary
Investments in equity instruments - at cost (unquoted)
Paulmech Hospitality Private Limited, a subsidiary

1,997,552 (31 March 2022 - 1,997,552) equity shares of INR 10 each, fully paid-up
Less : Provision for impairment in value of investment in subsidiacy

Agpregate amount of anquated investments
Aggregale amount of impaitment in valve of invastments
Non-curvent financial assets - Loans

Loan to refated party
Loan to subsidiary* # (Refer Note 42)

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 3022
120.72 120.72
(49.72} (42.72}
7100 71.H
120,72 120.72
43,72 49.72
Anat As at
31 Mawch 2023 31 March 2022
253.93 22067
253.93 220,67

* Loan to subsidiary represents amoud given to Paulmech Hospitality Private Limited camying interest @ 12% p.a and repayable as per mutual consent between parties. Loan js given for general

corpovate and project expenses.

# Includes interest accrued on lan to subsidiary amounting to INR 114.65 (31 March 2022 - INR 87.59)

Loans and advawces te specified person

Mame of Borrower

Ay at 31 March 2023

% of total loan &

As at 31 March 2022

%5 of toial loan & advances

advances
Paulmech Hospitality Private Lamited {Subsidiary) 25393 100% 220,67 1009
MNon-current financkal assets - Others As at As at
{Unsecured, considered good) 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Bank deposits (due o mature after 12 months from the reporting date) * # 46 66 1.56
Security deposits 73.62 B6.18
120.28 67.74
* [ncludes bank deposits under licn amowmting to INR 1781 (31 March 2022 - [NR 1.44)
# Includes interest accrued on bank deposits IMR 0.96 {31 March 2022 - INR 0.12)
Income tax assets (net) As at Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Tax deducted at source 838 6.37
8.38 6.37
Income tax For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
A: The major ¢components of incorme tax expense / (income) are
Recognised in profit or loss
Current tax - -
Deferred tax - -
Rerogalsed directy In Other comprehensive income
Income tax op other comprehensive incoms - -
B. Deferred tox assefsfliabilities
As at As al
31 March 2023 31 March 222
Deferred tax asscis
Unabsorbed business 1nsses and depreciation 1.334.05 1.002.21
Provision for employes benefits 5.94 249
Dhsallowance under Section 43B of the Income tax Act, 1961 {for accrued interest) - 50.72
Loss allowance for trade receivables 038 0.25
Impairment in value of investments 12.51 25
Others kXX ) | 3511
1,387.27 1,112.39
Deferred tax llabilithes
Property, planl and equipment, Right-of-use assets, Capitel work-in-progress and other intangible assets 153.29 131.0%
Non convirtible debentures - 20006
153.1% 331135
——
Net defevred fax asset 1,233,99 5
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C. Movemeat in temporary differences

31 March 2023
EBalance as at Deferred tax an Balance an at
1 Aprll 2022 differences penerated 31 Mareh 2023
Particulars hat 11.0(' recogmised
during the year
(A) (B} [C=A+R)
Deferred tax assets
Impairment in value of investments 12.51 - 12.51
Unabsorbed business loss and deprecigtion 100221 331.84 1,334.05
Loss sllowance for trade receivables 0.25 Q11 : 036
Disallowance under Section 43R of the Income tax Act, 1961 {for accrued interest) 5472 {59.721 .
Provision for emplovee benefits 249 445 6,94
Others 35.11 (i.69) 33.41
101229 274.5% 1,387.27
Deferred tax liabilities
Praperty, plant and Right-of-use assets, Capital work-in-progress and other intangible assets 131.08) {22.19) (153.29)
Non-convertible debentures (200.06}) 200.06 -
031.19_' 177.36 (153,20}
Tatal 78114 452.35] 1,233.04|
31 March 2022
Balance as at Deferred fax on Balance as at
1 Aprif 2021 differences generated 31 March 2022
Particulars bui mot recognised
during the year
(A) {B) (C=A+B)
Deferred tax assets
[mpairment in value of investments 12.51 - 12.51
Unabsorbed busi losses and depreciation 84883 155.38 1,002.21
Loss allowence for irade receivables 215 0.10 0.24%
Disallowance under Section 43B of the Income tax Act, 1961 (for accrued interest) - 59.72 5972
Pravisicn for emploves benefirs 3.01 0.52) 2.49
Onhers 41,98 {837 35.11
905.48 203.81 1.112.29
Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment, Righf-of use assets, Capital work-in-progress and other imtangible assets (112.67) (18.42) (131.09)
Mon-convertible deb es - {200.06Y [200.06)
(112.567) (213.48) (331.15)
Tadal 795.81 14.67) 78114
D. Reconciliation of effertive tax vate (tax expense and the accouniing prefit multiplied by Company's domestic tax rate)
For the year cnded For the year coded
o 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
ki Ampunt o Amount
U Loss before tax (539 (635.80)
| Tax usimg, the Company's domestic tax rate 2517 (227.8T) 2517 (165.06)
Tax effect oft
Non recognition of deferred taxes on temporary differences (50.02) 452.85 223 {14.65)
= Non-deductible expenses {0.01) 0.00 (0.21) 1.3%
E MHon-convertible debentines (PIK abligation recognised through equity) 22.43 (203,08) {28.24) 185.20
o Others 243 (21.99 1.05 {6.38)
Effeetive tax rate - - - -
E. Tax losses carried forward
Tax losses for which no deferred tax asset wos recognised with expiny date as follows;
As at Ag at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Amount Expiry Date Amount Expiry Date
iFi ial Year) {Financial Year}
Buziness loss - - EYAY) 2021-23
Business loss 60,01 202324 60.50 2023-24
Business loss 127.30 2024-25 127.30 2024-25
Business loss 2430 2025-26 236,62 2025-26
Business loss 454,41 2026-27 494.4] 202627
Business loss 26114 2027-28 26174 202728
Business 1nag 445,30 2028-29 445.30 H2E-20
Busziness loss 579.26 2029-30 422,10 20259-30
Business loss 1.002.76 2030-31 - 2030-31
Unabsorbed depreciation 2,105.51 Never expire 1,896.56 Qxpire
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Ovher non-currnt asisls As at As Al
[Umsecnred, conviderad good) 31 Mareh 2025 31 March 2022
Capital advances 079 -
Advenees other tham capical sdvances
Frepaid expensss 3.80 263
DWher receivables - 1202
4.59 14,30
Invenigries Asnt Asnt
(werlued at lower off cor amd ned realtrable value) 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Food znd beverages 303 1.9%
Stores and operating supplies 003 o2
3.; .00

Corrent (manrial nesety - Tende recelvables F As at Asat
{Lnsectived) 3] March 2023 31 March 2022
Trade Receivables
-Considered good 5634 15.40
-Credit impaired 085 1.00
Unbilled revenus
-Cansidersd good 692 833

&3 24.T3
Less - Loss allowance {1.35} {100}

42,36 3.3
1) The Company’s exposure to cradit risk end Joss allowances related to rivde recervables sre distlosed in Note 43
b} For eegivables pledged agaimst borrorwings, refer io Note 20 and Meie 25
Trade receivables ageing schedule
As at31 Mparch 2023

Owstandlng for foll erieds frem dale of fransaction
Particalary .
Unmbilled Revenue |  Lexs flean & monthy 6months -1 year | l-Zyears | 2-3yeans Mora than $ yrars Total
Undisputad Trade receivables - considersd pood 632 51.42 473 919 = - 62 RE
Undispaned Trade receivables — oredit impaired - - - 1] 047 033 13
Total 6,52 51.42 4.73 024 a7 (1] 635.71
As ar 31 March 2022
Cutstandinp for Sllowin od o date of transaclion
Particulars
Unbilied Revemue | Leas than 6 weatha 6 maoniths - 1 year L-2years 2-3yenrs | Mere than 3 years Tatal

Undigputed Trade receivables — considered eood B33 15,029 030 0.01 - - 23.73
Undisputed Trede recajvables — oredit impaired - - 007 0.5] 034 008 1.00
Total 8,33 15,09 B3 0.51 0.34 NI} ] 2d.73

The Company does not kave sny disputad trade receivables as at 31 March 2023 end 31 March 2022
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Current financial assets - Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with bonks

- an cyment accounts

- in deposit accounts {with original maturity of 3 months or less)
Cash on hand

Current financial assets - Bank halances other than cash and cash equivalents above

Bank deposils (with original maturity of more than 3 months bul less than 12 months) *#

# Includes bank deposits under lien amounting to TNR Nil (31 March 2022 - INR 0.02 )
* Includes interest accrued on bank depasits TNR 0.24 (31 March 2022 - INR 0.84)

Current financial assets - Others
{Unsevured, considered good)

Bank deposits (due to mature willun 12 months from the reporting date) *#
Government grant

# Includes bank deposits under lien amounting 1o INR. 0.70 (31 March 2022 - TNR Nil)

* Includes interest accrued on bank deposits amounting to INR 0.0€ (3] March 2022 - INR Nil)

Other current assets
{Unseeured, considered good)

Ealance with povernment authorities
Advance to suppliers

Prepaid expenses *

Staff advance

Other receivables

*Tncludes current portion of non
Assels held for sale

Asset held for sale

prepaid ex amounting to INR 2.43 (31 March 2022 - INR 0.5}

As at Asg at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
46,14 42,76
- 27.50
1.63 1.36
47,77 T1.62
Asat Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
823 64,83
8.23 64,83
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 Mareh 2022
0.81
- 098
0.81 098
Asat Az at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
511 6891
4.66 11.84
13.29 1139
.04 -
8.01 5.03
78.11 2717
Asx at Asal
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
70.00 70.00
70.00 70.00

The Company reclassified @ parcel of land and capital work-in-progress as asset held for sale. The asset held for sale was measured ai fair value less cost to sell of INR 70.00,
The fair value less cost to sell was determined by an independent valuer basis the market approach by reference to sales in the market of comparable properties. Also, refer

Note 40.
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As at As at
.18 Equity share capital 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Mumbsr of sharss Amount MNumber ol shares Amount

Authorised share capital
Equity shares of THR LD sach 38,378,975 Jazrme 38,378,975 38379

38378978 38179 3R,378,97% 383,79
Issued, subacrilyed and fully paid vp
Equity shares of INR 10 each 38,374,080 38378 38,375,080 38375

38,575 830 383,748 38,375,080 383.78
#} Reconciliation of the equity shares ;s dimg al the heginnimg and al the end of reporting period

For the year ended For the year ended

A March 2023 31 Mareh 2022
Number of shares Amount MNumber of shares Awount

Aunthorised share capital
Al the beginning of the year 38373975 38379 30,050,000 30050
Add : 1ssued during the year - - 2,328,975 83129
Balance el the end of the year 34,378,975 383,79 3878,975 35379
Tazued, subseribed and fully paidup
At the beginning of the year 38,375,080 38375 30,046,105 300.46
Add ; Issued during the year = - 8,328,975 §3.29
Balance at the end of the year 38,375,850 383,75 35,375,080 383.75

b) Rights, preferences and resirietions atiached to equily shares

The Company has goly one class of equity shares having the par value of INR. LU per share. Each heolder of equity share is entitled to one vota per share The equity shares are entitlsd to ceceive dividend ax
and when declared. [n the event of liquidation of the C , the holder of equity shares will be entithed to receive remaining gssets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amgunts. The

distribution will be in propertion to the numbear of equity shares beld by the shareholders

¢) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares

Name of shareholder
Ay at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Number of shares % of holdisg Number ol shares % of boding

Equity shares on INR 10 2ach
SAMHI Hotels Limited, Hobding Company * 38,375,080 100% 38,373,080 L00%
*1 equity share is held by Mr. Gysma Das a5 a nominee shareholder
d) No shares have been allotted without payment of cash or by way of bonus shares or bought back during the pariod of five yenrs i disdely pracading the Bal Sheet date.
€) Terms ol comversions of Fully Cosmpulsorlly Convertible Debentures (“FCCDs")

The fully compulsorily convertible det (FCCDrs} will be

As per the terms of the debenbmre deed, no interest will aceruc to the debenture holders il 27 September 2017 from the date of all
compulsorily and mandatorily convertible into equity shares of the Company within 2 period of 12-20 years from the dae of allotment. Holders of FOCD are entitled to convert all the FCCD into equity

shares at any lime within 15 days of giving notice to the Company as per following conversion terms

As a2t 31 March 2023

Conversion Terms Number of deb g 4k &t | Nmmber of det Thate of all Lazt date of eonversion
31 March 2022 /2023 asat
31 March 2821
Conversion at the rate of 1:1 L e for every FCCD of INR 100 each, | equity - 864,000 | 24 8 ber 2007 23 Seplember 2029
share of INR 10 shall be issued at a premium of INR 90 - 1.252.100 06 July 2010 D5 Judy 2030
. 1.215.490 | 18 Novemnber 2011 17 Novernber 2031
= 4.997.385 31 August 2002 30 August 2032
Total - 8.328.975

FCCDs converted io equity shares an 7 Gotober, 2021 a5 per sbove conversion terms

) Detalls of pronieters shareholding as at year end :

Change during the  No.of shares at the % of Tolal Shares % chaspe during the

5 Now Promoter Na. of shares al the beginming
i the year year emd of the year year
I SAMHI Hotels Limited (Holding Companry} 38,375,020 - 38,375,080 100% -
As at 31 March 2022
E No. Promoter Neo. of shares at the beginning  Chamge during the  No. of shares at the % of Total Shares % change during ihe
of the year year end of the year year
1 SAMH) Hotels Limited (Holding Company) 30,046,105 £,328 975 38,373,080 L0 -
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1% Other equity

e

Securities premium

Retained earnings

Equity campanent of concessional overdrafl facility

Equity component of interest Free toans from Holding company
Equity component of convertible PIK obligation

Equity component of fully compulsorily convertible debentures

a) Securities premium

Balance al the beginning of the year
Add : Additions made during the year
Balance at the end of the year

Securities premium is used to tecord the premium teceived on issue of shares. It is utilized in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2013.

b) Retained earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year

Loss for the year

Transferred from other comprehensive income
Balance at the end of the year

Retained eamnings represent the amount of accumulated logses of the Company.

c) Dther comprehensive Income - Remeaswrement of defined heneflt plans (net of tax)
Balance at the beginning of the year

Remeasurements of defined benefit Hability/asset {net of tax)

Transferred 1o tetained earnings

Balance a1 the end of the year

Remeasucements of defined benefi liability/asser comprises actyarial gaing and losses.
d) Equity component of concessional overdraft facility

Balance at the beginning of the year
Balance at the end of the year

This represents the impact of overdraft facility availed by the Company at an interest rate lower than the market interest rate from the holding company.

&) Equity component of {ully compulsorily convertible debentores

Balance at the beginning of the year
Conversion of fully compulsorily converiible debentures inio equity shares

Ralance at the end of the year

This represents the fair value of equity component of fully compulsorily convertible debentures.

f) Equity component of convertible PIK obligation

Balance at the beginning of the year

initial recognition of equity component of convertible PIK obligation

Net gain on fair valvation of equity componeni of convertible PIK ebligation
Balance at the end of the year

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
1,546.11 1,546.11
(5,083.27) (4.177.47)
1869 18.69
2.467.33 2,447.33
710,06 721,44}
17217 179.17
{161.91) 73523
1.546.11 766.50
- 749.61
1.546.11 1,546.11
(4,177.47) [3,521.7%)
(905.39) {655.80)
41} 0.08
(5,083.27) {4.177.47)
(0.41) 008
0.41 (0.08)
18.69 [8.69
18.69 18.69
17917 1,012.47
- (832.90)
17917 179.17
721.40 -
= 73580
(11.34) {1440
710.06 721.40

This represents the fair value of Convertible PIK obligation of Non-Convertible Debentures issued during the previous year (Refer Note 20).

This represents the air value of convertible PIX obligation of non-convertible debentures issued during the previous year. During the current year, the Holding company has settled
convertible PIK obligation through issue of equity shares of SAMHI Hotels Limited (Holding Company). Also, refer to Note 20,

Vakiaation technigee used lo deieraiine fair value
Specific valuation technique used to value convertible PIK obligation {nclude:

- the fair value for equity component of canvertible PIK obligation is calculated based on monte carlo method of valuation of the insirument (Level 3)

Details of significant uncbservable inputs for neasurement of falr valies

Inter—relationship between significant unobservable inputs and fair value

Significant unobservakle inpuis
Equity component of convertible PIK phllgation (Other equity) Asat As at Remarks
31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022
Enterprise value of SAMHI Hotels Limited (holding company) ("EV*) NA 14,197.81| The estimaled fair value would increase {decrease) if the EV was
higher (lower)
Risk frea rate NA| 4.6]%| The eslimated fair value would decrease (increase) if the risk free
rate was higher (lower)
NA 92 20%| The estimated fair valve would increase (d

rate was higher (lower)
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Sensitivity enalysis

For the fair value of equity component of coavertible PIK obligation, reasonably possible changes at the reporting date due to one of the significant unobsarvable inputs, holding other
inputs constant, would have following effects:

Profit or {loss} / Equity, net of tax

31 Masych 2022 Inerease Decrease

Business value {5% movement} {33.50) 33.20
Risk free rate (1% movement) .70 (080
Volatility rate (1% movement) (0.70) 0.60
£) Equity compenent of interest free loan {(unsecured) from Holting company

Balance at the beginning of the year 2,447.33 2,192.98
Add : Loan from Holding Company received - recognized directly in other equity 20.00 254.55
Balance at the end of the year 246733 2,447.33

This represents the equity component of the interest fiee loan received from SAMHI Hotels Limited, the Holding Company. Below are the terms of unsecured loan from Holding
Company :

- Loan to be conzidered as perpedual debt

- Nil rate of interest

- Repayable at the option of the Company.
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20 Nom-curreat finrncisl liabilities - Bovrowings As at Asat
31 March 2023 Al March 2022
2) From baal (secored)
Term lean 221034 =
b) From fwnancial instilution (seesred)
Term loan 513,55 -
) Nan-convertible debantures (secured)
31 March 2023: Nil; 31 March 2022; 4,100, 19.50 % non-convertible debentures of INR, 1,000,000 ench : . 2,20239
Less: Interest acerued on bomowings (refer note 25) (6,033 -
Leas: Current maluritiex of bong-texm bormowings (refer note 25} (113.30) -
2,604,56 1,291.39
A. Terms and conditions
(Iy Loans feaw bank and finamcial institwilon
Particulars Samctiowed Ameunt Interest rate charged per annum | Repayment Terms Security details
(INR Millions) 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
CITIBANK, NA 2,232.00 3 mamths T-hill rate +| - |The loan is repayable in 44 siroctured|i) First exclusive mormgage on the Assets af borrower
Macgin (3.75%) Lo quarterly inslallmenls starting after 13|and Asset of Co- Bomrower (SAMHI JV Busineas Hoteds)
10.63% months fom the first disbursement date i e|Private Limfted and Argen Holels Private Limiked),
27 February 2023 including morigage over leasehuld righis for beased
Fixed mandetory payment - On or prior ta| sssels.
12 monihs from the Gt dist I} i1} Hypotl om the recavables and Bank gecounts
date, INR 300.00 to b repaid towads pro-|iii) 99% of share pledge of the borrawers sheres and Mon
rats prepgyment of all the facilities from|disposal undertaking on the balance un-pledgsd fiom
Citibank, N.A ond Citicorp Finonce|Holding Company.
(India) Limited (“CFIL") {excloding cash|iv) Carporate Guarantze of Holding Company
credil and averdvalt facilities) obnained byl
the C and Co- B s {SAMHE
IV Bugimss Hotels Povate Limilcd end
Argon Hotels Private Limnited).
Cilioorp Fnemee (India} Limited 52000 3 months T-bill rate + = |The loan is repayabie in o4 dfi) First exch tgage on the Asseds of borrower|
("CFIL™) Margin (475%) ie quarterly inslallments starting after 12|and Assal of Co- B (SAMHI IV B Hotels;
11.63% meonlhs fom ibe fist disbursemend date j.e|Prvate Lamited and Argon Hotsls Private Limited),
27 February 2023 including mongage over kaschold rights for leased
Fixed mandalory payment - On or priar 1o|assets
12 months frem the first dist ii) Hypothecation on the receivables and Bank
date, TNR 300.00 to be repaid towards pro-[rii) 99% of share pledge of the bowrrowers shares amd Non
rate prepayment of all the Gecilities from|disposal undertaking on the bal pledged from
Citibank, N.A and Citicorp Finance|Holding Company.
(India} Limited {"CFIL") (exchuding cash|iv) Corporaie Guarantee of Holding Company.
credit and overdraft facilities) obtained by
the Company and Co- Bormpwers (SANMHL
JV Business Hotels Private Limited and
Argon Holels Frivate Limited)
IL&FS Financial Services Linitcd 3,000.00 B Base rate minus|The loan amount is repaysble by bullet{ The rem loan was secured by following:

5.10% | payment afler 3 years from the daie of first
which i5 10.90%|disbursement i.e 26 April 2018
During the year ended 31 March 2021, the
Company hed availed for extansion of]
term Joan in consommce with the circular
DOR. No BP BC3/21.04.048/2020-21
izsued by Reserve Bank of India on 6

1.
pledge on (i) 51 % shares of Barque Hotels held by
SAMHI Hokels Limitsd and {ii) 100% shares of
Paulmech  Hospitality Private  Limited (*Subsidiary|
compnny') held by Barque Hotels,

on immovable fixed assets (lm:ludmg mamge uf

First charge of fully paid up equity shares by way of|

Lo drger r

2. First charge by way of equil

August 2021 on Resoluti k for
COVID-19velaled Stress un:ler which
INR. 1,500 was paid by 26 Apwil 2021 and
remaining term loan amount was repaid on
26 Oetober 2021

The Joan has been repaid in full.

futwre), for Barmue Hotels Private Limited (‘Company')
and its subsidiary’s owned land and building

3
imcluding substitution of leasehold rights of all the
Project Asscts

4, First charge by way of hypothecation on the entire
current assels of the Projecl, both present and future.

5, First cherge by way of hypothecation on all
fixed/movable assets pertaiming 1o the Project, both)
present and future.

6. Firat charge aver Diebt Servics Reaerve Account

hold rights} of ell the hotels {both present and

Firs! charge by way of security interesthypothecation
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(If) Nom-convertible debentures (NCDs)

1.0n 22 October 2021, Debentare Trust Deed (*DTD) was execuled between Barque Hutels Private Limited {*Bargue'), Pauimech Hospitality Private Limited (wholly owned subsidiary of the Bargue}, SAMBI
Hoiels lelied ('Hollilna Companﬂ and Vlslm ITCL (India) Limitzd ('Debenture Trustee™). Basis aforesaid Dobenture Trust Deed, during the financial year ended 31 March 2022, the Barque had issued 2,850

N Aoy b of a face value of INR. 1,000,000 each aggrsgating 10 TNR 2,350 on a private placemend basis 10 Sarvara Imvestment Fund 1 on the terms and conditions set

oul in DTD
2. These non-convertible deb e d by followi
(2} a first ranking mertgage on all immovable assels oflhsi"‘ pary and its subsidiery, Paulmech Hospitality Private Lirvited (“Subaidiary™, both present and fiture, including the Comapany's and its subsidiary’s
hotel properties
{bi) a first ranking charge on all the movable agssts (curent, nonecurrent and movable fixed assete) of the Comparsy and the Subssdiary, both present and futwre, including but nat limited to;

i) ble prof including pleat and machinery, machine spares, tools and accesseries, furniture, fxiures, vehicle and other non-cument sasets,

ii} the Permitted 1 which includes go sacurities, fixed deposiis in any scheduled il bank in India, which is not a lender ba the Group, liguid mutual fured debt schemes,

sil) intangible assets,

i) all currem assets of the Company and its subsidiary, ineluding but not Jimited 1o the bles of the Company and its subsidiary including cash in hand, mvestments classified a3 “held for trading”, raw

materials, consumasble stores and spares, book debts, operating cash Aow and siock in rade, and

v) el i and bank of the Company and s subsidiary and monies bying herein
{e) & first ranking exclusive charge over all rights and receivables of the Helding C which inchsdes all recefyable by the Holding Company fwhether s | or otfwrwise) from the
Comgany including but aot limited to the receivables of the Holding Company under the inker Ioan ag dated 1 December 2017 {as ded on 1 April 2019) for unsecured and inderest free imter-
corporate deposit of INR 2,435 10,

10845 shareholding hebd by the Holding Campany in the Company save and excepd the 1 equily share held by = nominee shareholder of

(d) a farst ranking exclusive pledge over the sharss and securilies
the Holding Company.

(¢} the Corporate G provided by Paulmech Hospitadity Private Limited in favour of debenture trusiee

(B all encumbrances created or to be created to secure the unlisted, d, redesroubl erlible debentures (“SAMHI JV Dabantures™ issued by SAMHI TV Business Hotsls Private Limited (“SAMM] JV™)
in favour of the debenturs holders, ranking pari passu inter-se the Barque Debenmtas nnd the SAMHI IV Debentures

3. As per Debenture Trust Deed, return on non-converiible debentures is 5um of Cash PIK and Convertible PTK.

G} At all times during the tenuce of non-convertible debentures, the debenture holder is entitled to a minimum IRR of not less than 21.34% per annum fi.e 19 5% per annum compounded monthly)

(ii} Cash PIK iz an emount that would give the debenture holder a return equal to 14.5% per ennum compounded monthly during the 1em of deb Cash Pl bligetion on non-convertible debentures is to be
scrviced 2t % pa pa}wblemonlhlyﬁmhsﬁrst year, 71 14 5% pa. payable monthly for balance term of 3 years (1o the exbent applicable) and ining gbligats {emplign of det o5

{ihi} Convertihle PIK i portion of accrued interest on 1he non-convertiblc debentures thal will be converted into equity shares of SAMH] Hotels Limited ﬂ-IDIdmg Company) in accordance with the SAMHI shares

kaldi

allotent agreement duted 22 October 2021 bety Berque, g comparry and det tnsiee.
{i¥) During the financiel year ended 31 March 2022, Barque paid debenture holder uplront inleresi of 3% of the neminal value of each non-convertible debemures izsued as an sddilional interest
() After lock-in-period for the nonrconvertible debentures of 12 months from the date of first dishursement i.e. 25 October 2021, thess debentures gre redeemable within 4 years ol the aption of Barque or o the end

of 4 years from date of first disbursament Further, the non-convenible deb will be mandstardy red 1 within 30 days of oeeurrence of an 1PO event

ible deb have been red d A dingly, the cash FIK componcmt has been Rally repasd and the Convertible PIE, comp has been 1 intey

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the nen
equity shares of Helding Company ellotted to Sarvara Investment Fund 1 2t a it value of INR. 184,85 per equity share.

{efhudls and there has been no inlimalticn fom the bank/ financial instimbicn

(iii} The Company did not have any inuing defaults in the of Jgans and interest There have been no Hal |oan
For recalling any loan fagility

(i¥) For info ion about the Cornpany’s exp to interest rate and liquidity risks refer Mote 43
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Motes Lo the inancisl siatements For the year ended 31 March 2023
Al amounts in Rupees millions, unless othenvise staied)
~—y

‘n Non-carrem( Gnancinl liabWities - Lease lnbilities Agat Agal
31 March 2023 31 March 2021
Lense linbilities {refer Notz 47) 143.82 165.09
143.82 165.09
2@ MNeon Cwrrest financial liabilities - Trade payables Asat Az at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
- total ovlstanding dues of miere enterprises and small enterpriaes (MSKE) = =
- total outsianding dues ef creditors other than micro enterprises and small enlerprises - 288
: 9.88
The Company's exy to liguidity risks relased 10 trade payables is dischosed in Nots 43
Trade payables ageing echedule
As at 31 March 2022
Pacticulars Datstand img for follow igds from due dale ol transaciion
Averued exnenses | Less tham ? vear 1-2 years 2-3 veara More tham 3 vears Telal
MEME = A - a - -
Orhers - 045 731 2.12 = 9.88
Total - 0.45 31 2.2 = 438
The Comparry does not have any disputed dues which ave payable ax at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022
23  Noo-curreni provisiomy Az at Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity (Refer note 34) 236 202
Compensated abserices (Refer note 34) in 29
237 4.95
34 Other mon-current Enhilitiey Anar Asal
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Income received in advance Tr.19 2242
7.19 4142
25 Current (oancis! Nabilties - Borrewings Azat As gt
{Secured) 31 March 2023 I March 2022
Cuiment matyrities of long-term bormrawings (z=fer nuts 20) 113,30 -
Cash credit and overdraft Beilities from baak *¥# 370.42 -
483.71 -
*Includes interest acerued amounting 1o TNF. 3.24 (31 March 2022 - INR Nil)
Cash aredit smd averdraft faeilities irom hank
Parvicuiare Sanctisned A Interest rala charged per geina o Terms Setmrify detdils
(INR Milsus) 31 March 2023 31 March 2932
CITIBANK, M A 400,00 | 3 monihe T=kill rete - |Repzyabde on demand. | i} Fist exclusive morigage on dhe Assels of bomower and Assed of Co
+ Margin (3.79%) Bommower (SAMHI JY Business Holels Privale Limsded and Asgon
ie 10.63% Holels Private Limiled), mcluding morigege over leasshobd righis for
leaced asseis
i} Hypodh ion on the ivables and Bank
- i) 99% of ahare pledge of the bomrowers thares and Noa dispasal
underiaking on the balance un-pledged from Holding Company
iv) Corpocale Guaraniee of Holding Compamy:
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Notes to the fimancial stataments For the year ended 31 March 2023

(A amouney tn Rupees wmillions, unfesy omervise siqted!
=

Anat

Az al

26  Curreni limancial liebdlities - Lease liabilities
31 March 2023 31 March 2822
Lerse liabililies (refer Note 47 ) 47.81 14 56
47.81 54.56
27 Curreai Dinamcial lbilities - Trade payables Asat Asat
21 March 2023 31 March 2022
Trade payables
- tolal putstanding ducs of micro enderprises and small enterpeises (MSME) .27 1.69
- total outstanding dues of ¢reditors ofher than micro enterprises and small enterprises 146 01 167 63
147.28 169,33
a) The Company’s exposure 1o currency and liguidity risks relsted to trade payables is disclosed in Note 43
b) Rafer Note 42 for dues 1o related parties
¢) Refer Note 46 for disclosures ender Micro, Small and Mcdium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 {MSMED)
Trade payables Agsing Schedwle
As at 31 March 2023
for followd tods from due date of pavoseat
i Accrued expenses | Less than 1 vear 1-2 years 23 years Moce than 3 years Totml
MEME - 077 030 : = 127
Oihers 60.34 £4 53 113 . .01 14801
Total #0.3d 3530 1.63 - 0.00 147.28
Asat 31 March 20232
I —Owistending for faMowing pevinds fram due date of payment
Parficulars Accrued expenses | Legs tham Il vear 1-2 years 2-3 yenrs Mouare than 3 years Tutal
- 1.69 - - - 1.69
Othess aT3R 119.92 - - 032 162.62
Total 4738 111.61 - - 032 18932
The Company dots not have any disputed dues which are payeble o5 sf 31 March 2023 and 31 Mawch 2022
28 Cureent Mancisd linbdlities - Others Az at Az Bt
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Employee related payahles 1961 262
Interest acerued on borrowings (refer Note 20) 6.03 =
25.64 2.63
19  Other current lisbilitzes A at Asat
31 March 2023 31 Mareh 2022
Advance from cusiomers 453 862
Income received in advance 523 513
Statulory duss payable 14.81 11.25
| 26.57 2510
30 Current provisions As at As at
31 March 2023 31 Merch 2822
Provision for employee benefils
Grawty (refar Note 34) 1.05 083
y Compensated absences (refer Mote 34) 233 188
A.38 17
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Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
"'}m nmounts in Rupees miftions, unless otherwise sigied)

- 31

32

34

Revenue from operations

Sale of services
- Room revenue

- Food and beverage revenus
- Recreation and other services

Dther operating revenwes
- Space rentals

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
127081 469,26
133.60 70.00
12.86 4.80
1,417.27 544.00
3.24 292
324 292
1,420.51 546,98

The contract liahilities primarily relate fo the advence consideration received from customers for which revenue is recognized when the performance obligation is over/ services
delivered Advance collection is recognised when payment is received before the related performance obligation is satisfied. This includes advances received from the customer
towards roams / restaurant. Revenue is recognised once the perfonmance obligation is met i e. on room stay/ sele of food and beverage. Excess of tevenue over invoicing is recorded

as unbilled revenve. Revenue recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss is same as the contracted price.

Contract liabilithes
Advance from customers

Trade Reeelvables

As at
31 March 2023

653

6236

As at
31 March 2022

8.62

23.73

Mote: Considering, the nature of business of the Company, the above contract liabilitics are generally materialised as revenue and trade receivables is converted into cash within the

same operating cycle,

Other income

Interest income from financial assets at amortised cost
- bank deposits

Government grant

Unwinding of discount on security deposit

Interest on income tax refund

Interest on advance recoverable

Provisions/ liabilities no longer required written back

Net gain on fair valuation of equity component of converlible PIK obligation

Amortisation of income received in advance

Insurance income

Miscellaneous income

Cost of materials consumed

Consumption of food and beverages
Inveniory at the beginning of (he year
Add: Purchases during the year
Inventory at the end of the year

Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contributicn to provident fund and other funds (refer ‘' below)
Compensated absences (refer 'b* below)

Gratuity expense (refer'e’ below)

Staff welfars expensas

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 M March 2022
6.59 .20
0.13 278
6.81 689
0.43 -
324 305
263 B
1134 14.40
523 523
1.84 =
003 0.30
3327 33.85
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
200 -
101.83 49.83
(3.06) {2.00}
100.77 47.82
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 Mareh 2022
156.28 120.07
10.28 878
292 015
.80 073
21.68 13.76
191.96 143.4%
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 Mareh 2023

=

t amonts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)
i

a, Defined Contribution plans

The Company makes contributions, determined as a specified percentage of employee salaries, in respect of qualifying employess towards Provident Fund, Labour Welfare Fund
and Employees' State [nsurance, which are defined contribution plans. The Company has no obligations other thap {0 make the specified coniributions The coniributions are
charged to profit or loss as they accrue. The amount recognised as an expense towards contribution 10 Provident Fund, Labour Welfare Fund and Employees' State Insurance for the

year aggregated lo TNR 10.28 (31 March 2022-TNR 8 78). Also, refer Note 40,

b. Compensated abscnces
The Principal assumptions used in determining the compensated absences benefil obligation are as given below:

For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2023
%
Discounting rate p.a. 7.04
Salary growth rate p.a 550
¢. Defined Benelit Plan
Gratuity

For the year ended
31 March 2022
%
4.97
8.00

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five vears or more of service gets a gratuity on departure ot 15 days salary (last drawn salary)

for cach completed year of service. The scheme (s not funded

The following tables summaries the components of net benefit expense recognized in profit or boss and amounts recognized in the Balance Sheet for the said plan:

a) Expense recognised in Scatement of Profit and Loss

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current service cost 0.66 0.62
Interest cost 0.14 0.11
Total included in *Employee benefits expense’ 0.80 0.73
b} Remeasurements recognised directly in other comprehensive income
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

31 Muavch 2023 31 March 2022
Met actuarial loss/A(gain) recognized in the year
- chanpes in demopraphic assumptions (7. 19) (9.82)
- changes in financial assumptions {6.16) {111
- changes in experience adjustmants 13.73 10.85
Amount recognized in other comprehensive income D.41 {0.08}
¢) Change in present value of hemefit obligation
Pariieulars For the year ended Far the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Present value of obligetion as st the beginning of the year 2.85 253
Current service cost 0.66 0.62
Interest cost ¢.14 0.11
Remessurements of defined benefit liability / asset (net of tax) 04 {0.08)
Benefits paid (0.75) {0.33)
Present value of obligation as at the end of the year 3.31 2,88
d) Amoonts to be recognised in Balance Sheet
Partscolars As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Present value of the defined benefit obligation a1 the end of the year 3.31 2.85
Funded stalus - -
Net liability recognised in the Bakamce Sheet 331 2.85
Non-currenl 2.26 202

1.05 .83

Current
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_Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
I amaynrs in Rupees millions, unless otherwise nioved)

€) The principal assumplions used in determining the gratulty benefit obligation are as given below:

Particulars As at As gt
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Economic assumptions %% Y
Discounting rate p.a (i) 7.04 497
5.50 200

Salary growth rate p.a. (ii)

(i) The discount rate is generally based upon the market yields available on Government bonds at the accounting date with & term that matches that of the liabilities.
(ii) The salary growth rate tekes account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors on long term basis.

As at Asat
Demagraphic assemptions 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Retirement Age (Years) 58 58
Withdrawal Rate
Ages
Up to 30 Years 78% B4%
From 31 to 44 years 78% 84%
Above 44 years 78% 84%
bAowtality rate 100% Indian assured lives 10024 Indian assured lives

mortality (2012 - 14) mortality (2012 - 14}

f) The Company's best estimate of expense for the next year is TNR. 0.80 {31 March 2022: INR 0.70).

2} Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporling daie ta one of the refevant acluarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit
obligation by the amaunts shown below.

31 March 2023
Increase * Decrease *
Dizcount rate (0.5% movement) (0.03) 0.03
Salary prrowth rate (0.5% movermnent) 0.03 [0.03)
31 March 2022
Increase * Decrease *
Discount rate {0.5% movement) (0.03}) 003
003 003

Salary growth rate {0.5% movement)

Although the analysis does nod take account of the full distributien of cash flows expected under the plan, il does provide an approximatian of the sensitivity of the assumptions
shawn.

* Positive amount represents increase in provision
* Megative amount represents decrease in provision

Sensitivity changes due to withdrawal and mortality are not material and hence not disclosed.
There was no change in the method and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years

U h) Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

Asx at As at

Year 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Jto ] Year .03 083
1to2 Year 1.70 1.38
2103 Year 0.38 0.26
310 4 Year 0.08 0.04
4105 Year 0.02 0.0]
5t06 Year 0.00 0.00
More than 6 years n.08 0.33

3.3 285
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ptes ko the finaneial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
.ﬂ!ﬂ amaunts in Rupees millions, unfess otherwise stated)

35 Finance costs

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Interest expenss on financial liabilities carried at amortised cost
Loans from bank and financial institution™ 30.70 141,15
MNon-convertible debentures # 1,119.12 266.32
Lease liabilities 22.06 2385
Interest expense on delay in deposit of statutory dues 0.35 511
Other finance costs 14.47 3292
1,186.70 46939
* nei of interest income on boan funds amounting to INR Nil (31 March 2022 - INR 13.20)
# net of interast income on loan funds amounting 1o INK 26.73 (31 March 2022 - TNR 10.08)
36 Depreciation and amortisation expense For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 153.76 169.03
Amortisation of right-to-use assets 1762 1775
Amaortisation of other intangible assels 358 222
174.96 139.08
37 Other expemses For the year eaded For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Rates and taxes 17.1% 2977
Consumption of stores and supplies 58.01 27.53
Management and incentive fees 65.05 16.59
Commisgion 109.77 4505
Communication 19.29 17.64
Training expenses 248 047
Rent (refer Note 47) 102.27 30.90
Power, fuel and waler £3.92 5624
Repair and maintenance
- Building , 11.84 10.04
- Machinery 2292 14.27
- Others 0.93 0.39
Insurance 540 531
Travelling and conveyance 14.08 546
Loss aliowance for trade receivables 0.35 0.40
Television expenses 4.18 259
CGeneral administration expenses 360 297
Contractoal labour 45.96 3015
Payment to auditors* 1.76 2.04
Legal and professional fees 85.59 7936
Advertisement and business promotion 49.52 12.96
Miscellaneous expenses 162 0.74
709,73 389,27
ol “Payment to auditors
Statutory aodit 1.63 2.0
. Reimbursement of expenses 013 0.04
1.76 2.04
38 Exceplional items For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
F Capital work-in progress written off{refer Note 50) - (g 3:)
= 234}

39 Earnings/(loss) per share (EPS)

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the Jass for the year attributable (e equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares ontstanding

during the year.

Diluted EPS is caleulated by dividing the loss for the year attributable to the equity sharcholders by weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year plus the weighted average number 0f equity shares that would be isswed on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares inte equity

shares,

Net Toss attributable to equity shareholders
Weighted average nuraber of equity shares cutstanding during the year for calculation
of basic EPS

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year for calculation
of diluted EPS

Notminal value of equity shera (JNR)
Basic eamings/(losses) per share (INR} &
Diluted esrnings/(losses) per share (INR) | é?l

For the year ended For the vear ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

{905.39) (655.80)

38,375,080 34.0602,268

38,375,080 34,062,268

10.00 10.00
(23.59) (19.25)
(23.59) {19.25)
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:10 Contingent liahilities and commitments

41

{to the exteni not provided for)

Asat As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account =
and others, and not provided for

Contingent liabilithes

(i) The Company iz subject to legal proceedings and claims on account of Hosur land dispute. During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company has received a favaurable order
from the High Court of Kamalaka wherein the High Court has quashed the proceedings and directed Kamataka Tndustrial Aress Development Board (KIADB}) 1o release the
compensation of INR 25.84 1o the Company. Subsequently the opposing parties have moved spplications before lower courts seeliug multiple reliefs apainst which the Company has
filed counter claims and appeals. The management is of the view that based on the merits of the arguments put forward and facts of this case, the outcome is likely to be in the favour

of the Company and no provision is required to be created in the boaks,

(i} The Company had received an assessment order for financial year 2015-16 whereby an addition of INR 1.13 had been made (o the toral income of the Company. The addition
pestains to disallowance under Sectian 40(a)(ia) of the Income Tax Act, 1961, interest on TDS, undisclosed TDS and depreciation oo elecirical fittings. The Company had filed an
appedl before the Commissioner of Income-tax {Appeals) against the said addition. During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company has seftled the matler under Vivad Se

Vigshwas Scheme

(iii} The Company had received an assessment ocder for financial year 2016-17 whereby an addition of INR 296.97 has been made to the total income of the Company. The addition
pertains 10 unreasonable share premium under Section 56(2)(vifb) of the Incame tax Act, 1961 and unbilled revenue, not included in income offersd to tax. The Corspany has filed an

appeal before the Commissioner of Income-tax (Appeals) against the said addition which is pending for disposal

(iv} The Company had received a penalty order w's 271C of the Income-tax Act, 196! for financial year 2015-16 whereby a penalty had been impased on the Company of INR 0.12.
The Company hed filed an appeal before the Commissioner of Income-tax (Appesls) against the said penalty arder which is pending for disposal. Based on the merits of the arpuments
put forward, the Company is of the view 1hat the outcome will be in its favor and no provision is required to be created in the books.

(¥) The Company had received a penalty order u/s 271C of the [ncome-tax Act, 1961 for financial year 2016-17 whereby a penalty had been imposed on the Company of INR 1.01,
The Company had filed an appeal before the Commissioner of Income-tax (Appeals) against ihe said penalty order which is pending for disposal. Based on the merits of the arguments
put forward, the Company is of the view that the outcome will be in its favor and no provision is required to be created in the books.

(vi) In February 2019, Supreme Court of India in its judgement clarified the applicability of allowances that should be considered to measure obligations under The Employees*
Provident Funds And Miscellaneous Provisfon Act, 1952 The Company has been legally advised that thers are inerpresative challenges on the application of judgement
retrospectively and as such does not consider there is any probable obligations for past periods.

{vii) During the curtent year, applications have beem filed before the Commissioner under the Employee's Compemsation Act, 1923 by the legal heirs of two employees of the
company and these two employees had met with an unfortunate fatal accident approximately seven hours after end of their shift. By way of the aforesaid applications, the families of
the deceased are seeking amounis upto INR 7.00 from the Company by allegedly claiming that the accidemt had oocumed during the course of their employment. The Company's
menagement does not expect that these: Jegal actions, when ultimately concluded, will have a material and adverse effect on the Company's financial statzments.

(viii) The Company teceived an intimation from IL&FS Finencial Services Limited on 30 September 2018 demanding additional interest of [NR 46.11 on account of docament
deficiencies. In response 10 this demand, the Company filed a reply stating that there are no deficiencies or delays atributable to the Company, During the year ended 31 March 2022,

the loan has been repaid and the Company has received no dues certificate,

Operating Segmenis

The Holding Company's Chief Executive Officer has been identificd as the Chisf Operating Decision Maker ((CODMD, since he is responsible for all major decisions w.rt the
picparation and caccution of business plan, preparstion of budget, planning, allience, mecger, acquisition and expansion of any new facility CODM has examined the Company's
performance from produci and geographic perspective and has identified a single business segment i.e. "Developing and nmning of hotels”, hence nn sperific disclosures have been

made.

A. Information about products and services
The Company primarily deals in one business namely "Developing and running of hotels", therefore product wise revenue disclasure is not applicable.

B. Information about geographical areas
The Company provides services to customers in [ndie. Further, there are no assets located outside India

C. Information about major customers (from external customers)
The Company does not derive revenue from ane customer which would smount to 10 per eent or more of the Company’s revenue
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2 Related pariy disclosures

(a) Releted party and nature of relaied party relatlenship where cantrol exists

Description of relathanshi Name of related pariy

Holding Company SAMH! Hotels Limited

Subsidiary Paulmwch Hospitality Private Limited
b) Related parties with whom iransactions have talien place during the carrent year snd previous yesr
Deseription of relationship Name of related party

Holding Company SAMHI Hotels Limited

Fellow Subsidiary Ascent Hotels Private Limited
Subsidiary Paulmech Hospitality Private Limited

(¢} Related party ransactions during the current year/previous year

Particulars Haolding C Fellow Subsidiary/Subsidi
31 March 2023 31 March 2032 31 Marrh 2023 3] March 2022

Unseeured loan piven
Paulmech Hospitality Private Limited - .80 510

Loan fram Holding Company reseived (directly recogmired In vdher equilv)
SAMHI Hotels Linnited 20.00 254.55 - =

Conversion of lully compulsorily convertible debeniores into eqpity shares

SAMHI Hotels Limitzd - 832,90 - -

Interest income gn ungecured loam
Faulmsech Hospitality Private Limited 2673 2128

Lepsl and professional fees
SAMHI Hotels Limited 70.91 &4.10 - -

Reimbursement of expenses imcurred (met)
Ascent Hotels Private Limited - - 0.05

SAMHI Hotels Limited 0.50 - - .

Initial recognition of equliy campanent of comveriible PFK obligation

SAMHI Hotels Limited - 73380 . . -

oblipation
SAMHI Hotels Limited (1.3 [14.40) = =

Nat gatn on falr valuation of aquity t of Convertible FIK

| Revenue {rom eperations
+  |-SAMHI Howels Limited 0.42 - =

(i) In nddition to transactions mentioned above,
* _There wasa pledge over shares held and owned by the Holding Company in respect of borrowings from finencial institution 1] 25 Getober 2021,

-The Holding Company has piven a puarantee For refund of professionad fee to TmerConli | Hotels Group {India) Privaie Limited {"Mangger") / ntecContr 1 Hotels Chroup (Asia Pacific) Pre. Lid.
© 3 ("Licenspc™) in cese of Hlation of the Opcrating Services agr with the op
" = The Compamy had pledged frechold land of Peubmech Hospitality Private Limited, subsidiary company in respect of kean obtained from finzncial institution 61 25 Oetober 2021,
“d - The Holding Company had provided & L on behalf of the Company in respect of ierm loan obtsined from financial instinstion till 25 October 2021,

~The Holding Company had provided a DSRA undertaking an behalf of the Company in respect of term boan obtained from financial institution #ill 25 Oclober 2621

1| (i1} Refer Mote 20 and Note 25 for the securities! puarantees provided received by the Company on behalf of i relered entities for loans obiained from humk and finaneial institutions.
{iif} During the cuirent year, the Company has provided ities to its fellow subsidiaries emoanting ro IMR. 5,658,

(iv) The ransactions with related parties ar¢ made on terms equivalend to those that prevail in aom’s Jength kansactions and within the ordinacy course of b
d and ding bal al the year-end are unsecured and settlement occurs in cash.

i Ouistanding bal at the yearend are

[T (v) For the yearended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022, the Company has not ded any impai of receivables relating to amounts owsd by related partics. This assessment is undertakicn at cach
teporting period.
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{d) Related party balances as at year end

i

Partlcubirs Halding Campany Fellow Subsidiary/Subsidlary
31 March 2023 33 March 2022 31 March 1023 31 March 2022

Equity component of Fully cordpolgerily sonvertible debentures
SAMHI Hotels Limited 179.17 17917 ] =

Eamity component of concessional overdraft facllity

SAMHI Hatels Limited 18.69 18.69 - -

Eqgnity component of inlerest free loams from Holding company
SAMMHI Hotels Limited 2.467.33 2.447.33 - -

ukty component of convertible PIK obligatlom
SAMHI Hotels Limited TL0.06 721.40 -

Trade payables
SAMHI Hotels Limited 4%.10 65.90 - -
Ascent Holels Private Limited - - - 0os

Trade receivables
SAMHI Hotels Limited 0.09 E: - :

Orther receivables
SAMHI Hotels Limited 0.50 - = =

Imvestment (n subsldlary

Paulmeczh Hospitality Private Limited -

Provision Tor impairmeni in value of investments in subs]diarv
Peulmech Hospitality Private Limited - 49.72 49.72

Loan 1o subsidtary (inchuding saccrved interest)
poxh: i) 220.67

Paulmech itality Private Limited .

. 120,72 120.72
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43 Finaedial insdrumenis — Fair values amil riak masagement
1

A Finpocisl instrezmesds by caicgory amd Cale valee

The below 1ab] Lhe Jud, oo 51 mads in detcymini

mund for which Bir values are disclosed in (e fnaocil To provide o &

ke fir values ol the financisl insmoments (kal i () TReop and
ion abeul the reliability ol e inguls used in deeomining (e value ﬂannpnn} hai classificd t (irrancial

iniee the Diree Il ribed onder de sveounting stondard
As ut 31 March 2023
Level of Fair Value Through r Value Through Amortived Coxt
Fartlcoturs hierurchy Profit and Loss (FYTPL) | Other Comprehensive
Income {FYTOCT)
Finuncial nysels
Mor-curren| finamcid 25e0ts - Loans - 2530
Mon-current financial aseeis - Others 120.28
Cuwreat finoncisl azaees - Trade moch ables - - 6236
Cowrend (anaein] azsris - Cath omd cagh equisskenis - - 43137
Cworcal Onoweiol asseis - Bank balances other th h and cach equivalens aboo = - B2
Cwrsenl financial asects + Qthers - = &l
Toual flwancin) s5sers - 493,38
Financisl Kabfilies
b L finamcial Kabilitics = B 1] 2 - LOM3S
Non-cocreal finomcial liabilivies - Lease liabilides = = 143 82
Curmenl fnancial lishilitics - Cuwmont bosrorines z - - qA3 72
Currer finanofal lishilides - Trade pavables - - 14728
Currend B gl i - Lense linbilities - - 4741
Current Fmancia] fabilitics - Chhers = = 2564
Total financial liabilities - - $482.8%
Particulars As ol AL Merch 2022
Levd of Fuir Value Through Fuir Value Through Axveriived Cual
hlerarchy Pruofit and Loss (FVTPL)| Other Comprehmmaise
Ineome (FYTOCH
Flrmncial assots
| Noa-currant (inaikial assets - Loas 2 z 220 67
 Non-currom Qagmsiol gsss - Oy : s S
| Cumeni Anancial piseis - Trde recehabier = . 2313
\Cureem fnancial paszis - Cash and ensh equivaloss = 3 T 62
\Curend Grancial ssuels - Baok babvoces alber than cash and ok couit alenis abova = - (X5
1L fimangial ascc)s - - - 198
‘Toiel Tingnckal assets - * 44357
\Pimmedal Wgbilllies
Mom-curroni fimanciol lishilitie: - Bosrowinse 2 - = 2.29229
I.\’on-wn:nl financial liabilities - Lease liabilities - - L6509
Tow-au renk [al lishilitles - Tmde navahles = = k1]
Cumini financial Fiahililies - Trede pg phicy o 16933
Current finsocial Iahilities - Lease Ligbalaies = = 450
Cren financial lia hilities - Oihors - - 263
Total finuncial Habili 14%3.85

. inkncisl A6ae18 and li '

The fair valur of tradr cashand eash equival

withez bank botances, olher canrenl financial assets. curent bormou ings, curren) 1rade payablos and oiker ourven), (irancial lisbiigies approzinse

B "heir carrying amonts, dig 0 Uner Shon-1em s
Imtorust rokcs on nom-curros borowngs {bomowings om bank nad finenztal instlstion) ant ¢qmivalént W e markel e Sech borowings and al Ooaling rekes which am ol 8l short inkrvaly
5 Accordingh, U camying 1aluc of such bormowings appeoximalzs Eafr value
Fair »alation of viher non-carrent financinl sxacis and nos-curresd (mie payables hos b discloged ko be sanc 23 Gmmy ing vatur a5 there is 0o significaml dillcrowce bobwoen carmying value and fair 1alue
i Fair valug of borik doposit inclided in cther nan-coerent finanalal assets and boom 4 sobsidinn inciedod in nes-currost Tomes arc cquivalem B heir carrying amoual. & Lhe interest rale on Lhem s ogquivalent
o markel mote

The fais value rtazuremeni of leavz liabililics & not required [0 be dischoscd
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Moies i the finsnelal satements for e yenr ended 31 March 2023
AN amorais i Rupees anilioms, wrisas oo stoied)

I! B} Measurement of Inir vabwes
) Falr values are cobeporised inlo dilerent [avels in e fsr value hisrarchy based om the inpuls used in the valuzlion lechniques s follows:

Level |: quoted prices {unodjusted? in active markets (or idenlical assals o lizbilities
Level Z; imputs piher than quoled prices incheded in Level | hol are ghezrvable For the sxsels or liability, situer irecdy (L na prices) or indirecity (i e decived (rom pricesk

-
| Level 3t inputt [or the assels or liability thal are nol hased on observabls marker data (mebservalis inpuis)
There are ng iransior betwesn Lavel 1, Level 2 and Lot 3 during the year
IC) Pimanc]sl risk manapoment
Rixk masagement [ramewerk
The Company’s aclis itics exposc il [0 a vorely of inancial rske marker risk {inchuding forchgn exchan pe risk emd intorost o Fitk). ewedil rigk and ligudily risk:
The Holding Compory s Chiel Financial QMieer under the direrfiona of the Bosrd ol Di [ finenchal risk monagomomt polichs esross e Company. Tho Compary's risk paligies are i 1o iclentify ard analvez the riske
faced by the Compar. 19 cel opproprisee sk limils 2ad conlrols, 1o monilor risks and adheznee lu Kmils im onder o minfmiae the finsacial inpact of such risks The sk masapemenl policies emd $¥ewms arc sesicwed mpulady 1o reflery changu in markel
condilions aad Hee Company’s aelivilics
i Credit rél
Credin risk is tho risk: of fimancial loss o the Comnpany #a cusiomes of Lo a finamcial i [ails 1o mee its contracheal oblégetions, The canying emoum of fmanzinl assets rep e i eredit rigk e The Compamy bae credit
pelicics in place and the caposurts Lo s credit 7isks are manmorsd on = on paing btk
To coter b the crodil risk for bolances wilh barks. only bigh roled banks on: acocpled
The Company has given seewily deposils b Govomemen| depariaenis and vendors For sermring gervices fom them and rendel doposits Gar emplayec sccommodasions. The Company has alse recopniscd govermmont gran| recoverable in vospenl of txpon
Inccmttves. Fonler. the Compans bas faan bolances oulstanding 38 o vear and [tom it sutsidiacy. The Company docs ol expect ary dofiult fom these partics and aceordimgiy O risk ol defanll is negligible or il
In sespect of crodét cxposwes Wom (rade recelvables. the Company Wos policks I place w casere that saies on credil withowl collateral ans made principally to il agents and corp panics wiik an approprisee credil history: Sales 1o ol cusiomers
arm made in cash or by debir or credil cards or olbe peymend plolfooms
The Compam csiahlist Il for imss hal s cxpeeted <rodil losees i respect of Wade mochables The management oees o simplifled opproach for the purpose of compatation of expocied crodit beas for trode reecivables. In
mon owing cutlomer credl rllk CATIOMCTY B grm'od according o their orodit charagiarisiics, imtlodlag whaler (hey are a0 indivadual o logal eatily. theis grographical Jocation. imdusiny s cxisienee of previows financial difllvultios. iF oy
TDuring the year, the Comparry has e no wrile-oifs of e meeivebles
Reconcilintion uf hns allowanee provision
Far e year ended Far the year seded
31 Margh 2033 31 March 2022
Opening balooce Lon 05
Changes in loss allowanoc 033 o041
Cloging balamce 135 (F_ N
The inspairmicnt paoy 1s5one Koe T noii] asaces i sb bosed on wiLions oboul rick ol deaels and cxpecied Jocs rales The Company uses jurgement inmaking dr:be sasumplions and seleeting the inpats ke impoement cakuloion, 2esed on
the Compam 's past history, existng markol condilions as well a5 forma rd Jnoking, eslimates ol the end ol <ach reporting period
i, Liquididy risk
The Compuss"s approuch of move gm liguikly is b cosure. #5 Jar o3 possible, tad if will hove sulTicien Tnpoidity Lo meer ins linbbs when thoy o dug. undar botk dormal and stressed conditioes:
J
Mtimede: responsibilily for liguidily risk messgemeal webln wilh the Brard of Dirstors. which hee ecwshlishod an approp liuidiy risk [Ty & for the of the Compamys shori-erm. medium (o and bng-cms fanding and
liguidits manmgemcnd requircmoss
(2} Exposure to Bquidity risk
4
T fllowing are te owmini 1 ilica of Wwancinl abilitics ot the repinlng dake. The mealnts are grose and md3: | owd e loding # L inierest p
= Cantracheal cash Muws
M March 2023 Carcying umeast Tolsl 0-1 year 1-2 years 2.5 years More than S years
o
Nun-terivalise Mwancinl lisbilhics
Honcument koo, ings 2.6 56 2630469 b 4241 ST L2352
Curenl bomowdngs 48372 48372 #1372 - - .
Legse liabilitics 191.63 39564 4781 4160 R 00 22022
Corsen| rode pan obits 14724 147.2% 14728 - ¥ ]
Ohor cwerer finoncial Tiakililies 25.64 2564 2564 - - -
345283 A,690.97 TS 9302 441,76 245174
Conlcaciual cash Muws
31 March 2022 Crrrying ambun| Tolst -1 yeur -1 years 2.5 yeand Metn iham 5 yean
Ton-cwrrent bormvingy 119239 0BT 2R - * 308728 :
Non-<cument trade pasables 288 T EE - 9 RE . ]
Longe liabilitis 21965 13073 5450 4591 Lo 24 pr-10}
Currerd wade pavablos 16533 16932 16932 - - -
Cther cumeny financial |isbilites 263 2463 263 - - -
2693 84 169983 226,51 55,79 319252 22501
Absty, refir Nolt 49 for dlec]mmures of 2oing concem mssumiplion
[b) Financing arraopemenis
The Compaay ks accese 10 Lhe following wodrewn borrowing Eciliees al Le ond of the mporing period:
Asal Al nl
31 Murch 2023 M March 2022
Fisalimg rdic
Expiring wilhin one year (bank overdrafl and osber fbcilities) 381 =
J2BT -

. Markei risk
Th Company i csposod 10 merket risk primardly relating o tie sisk of chanpes in market prices, such ax frcign cwhange mics and mieres| rates. Ihol will mf<l dhe Company™s expense o Lhe vl of s hoddings of Nnancial ingrumenls

Inieeast eme visk

{the b mes of the Conpoo,
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(A omowss in Rnpeex mulfions, nnfers oifen e sioned)

il

Exppaaure I4) interrdl rae riak

The intaresi rale profile of the Corpam *s interest-beanng Hmencial instruments i as foffows:

31 March Iry 3 March 2072

Fixeascale instrumenis
Finnncidl sasots - bank doposits 3570 9389
Financial axscts = Loan to sobsidmn, 25393 . TS
Flnaneial liskilitics - nor-gonvenble debeniuee (Refer Maole 200 ] 229239
Varfable-rate instrumenty
Fimancial liabituis - Cachvredd and overdrull fecililes [rom bank 7042 -
Financinl liabilitics « Term loans from bank 2,21034 s

51333 -

Fimaneial liabilities - Term boars from Geaneial ine! | ubaa

Fair v alwr rnsilia iy analysis for fcd-raic i
The Company does mol scoount for any ficced-rate (inancial assols or linancial liabilies 21 [ir valoe toough profle and foss. Therelore, o change i inkerest rmice 2t dic reporling daw v ould mol affect profid or los. Alen, e Noke 434 for fair vabug disclosue

Cazh Mlow sensilivi Iysk for varisble-cate instruments

A reasonably possitle chemge of 100 basis poinis in inlerest rales a) the reponiing dase would have increased{decreased) equity and profil or boss by ibe ameunis shown below. This anahsis assumes Lhat all other varables, remain
cimslan]

(Profie) / buss Equidy. met of 1x
{increase} J decrease
LW b imcrease 108 bpt deeresse 108 bps Incresse JTHD s demrenise
3 March 2013
Fimancia| lisbilitics 284 (2843 284 12.84)
284 (2840 1 (2.84)

Cosh flw seasiiis iy (rel)
Capital Management

The Compamy’s policy fa 1o meimain a sirong capilal bass $6 a5 {0 meintem inycslor. credior end macked confidence and o sustain future desclopment of Lhe batinass

The Board of Di of the Company 3=¢ks to maittain 2 balance bty the higher relurns thal mighl be possible wilh higher levels of ing and the ad g Bl 3ecuribe alfordad by a sound capital pasition
The Company monisors capilel nsng loan 10 valee (LTV) mathod 1o énsure Lthal the lomn b value does nol incresse beyond 5% on any given teporting Jale at group level

The Campany is not subject 10 by impased capital requi

As a pan ol irs capital manapsmem poliey, the Company did not heve any consinuing defaults in she repay mem of loans and inlerest. There beve been no material lo4n covenan! defaulis and thers has been no ismadion from the bank/
financsal instituifon foc recalling wr loan Fasilin:
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45  Disclosure as per Ind AB 27 - Sepacate Financial Statements

1 Name of subsidiary Principal activity Principal phace of Ownership interest at
business
Az at Ag at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Paulmech Hospitality Private Limited Hotels India 100% 100%

The above investments in subsidiary is measured at cost

46 Disclosures vader Micro, Small and Mediow Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED)

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Dues to miero, small and medium suppliers
The amounts remaining unpaid 1o micro and small suppliers as at the end of the year:
Principal emount 1.27 L9
Interest therean 0.75 0.01
The amount of interest paid by the buyer as per the Micro Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED - -
Act, 2006)
The amount of payments made to Micro and Small Supglicrs beyond the appointed day during cach accounting vear - 11.06
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but bevond the 0.25 0.49
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under MSIMED Act 2006.
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year 0.75 0.50

075 0.50

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as
above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of
the MSMED Act 2006.

The management has identified enterprises which bave provided goods and services 1o the Company and which qualify under the definition of micro and small enterprises, as defined
under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprizes Development Act, 2006 {MSMED). Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounts payable 1o such enterprises as at 31 March
2023 and 31 March 2022 has been made in the fnancial statements based on informnation received and available with the Company.
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47

Lense disclosures

As lessee

The Company had adopted Ind AS 115 "Leases®, cffective annual reporting period 1 April 2019 and applicd the standard to its leases using modified retrospective approach, with the

cumulative cffect of applying the standard, recognised on the date of the initial application {1 April 2019).

Some leeses of hotels contain variable [case paymenms that are based on revenue earned by the respective hotel in the Company. Variable rental payreenis and estimated impact on rent

of 1% increase in revenue are as follows:

Details of rent expense: 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Rent Expense Estimated impact on Rent Expense Estimated impact on
Parficula rent of 1% increase in renf of 1% imcrease in
articulars Revenue Revenue
Expense relating to variable lease paymenis 10227 1.02 30,90 0.31
Total rent 102.27 102 30.90 1.31

The following table presents a maturity analysis of expected undiscounted cash flows for lease liabilities :

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

Particubarg

0-1 year 47.81 54,56
1-2 years 43.61 45.91
2-5 years £4.00 105.24
More than 5 years 220.22 225.01
Total lease payments 395.64 430.72

The reconcilistion of lease liabilities [s a3 follows:

Particulars

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

| Opening balance 219.65 253.15
Amounts recognized in Statement of Profil and Loss as interast expense 22.06 23 8%
Payment of lcase liabilitias {56.91) {57.9%8)
Additions 6.8 -
Closing Bal (Refer Note 21 and 26) 191.63 219.65
Moo cument lease liabjlitics 143.32 165,02
4781 34.56

Current lease liabilities

Leases entered by the Company are long term in nature and the underlying leased properties are being used as hotel properties

During the current year, SAMHI Hotels Limited {the Holding Company) has allocated expenses amounting INR 70,91 (31 March 2022 - INR. 64.10) as Company’s share of project

expenses and other cost incurred,

{zoing comcern
The Company has incurred & net logs of IMR 905,80 during the year ended 31 March 2023. As at 31 March 2023 the Company’s current liabilities exceed its current assets by INR
464,03, Further, the Company has contractual cash outflows of INR 704.45 {excluding future cont Li t pay } due within 12 month of the balance sheet date.

In the current year, cansequent to reduction in the number of COVID-19 cases and casing of all travel restrictions, the Company has witnessed a strong recovery, Starting from Q1 FY
2023, 1he Compaay has demonstrated improved business performance in terms of Average Room Revenue (ARR) and Occupancy levels. ARR and Occupancy levels in FY 202273
and Q1 FY 2023-24 have reached INR 3,210 and 69% and INR 3,382 2nd 69% respectively. The Company has projected a significant inctease in its cash flow from operations during
the years ending 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2025. The Company has cash and bank balance of INR. 84.96 {excluding restricted barnk deposits) and undrawn credit facilities of INR
3281 as on 31 March 2023 which will assist for meeting its short-term ligbilities for next 12 months, However, if a liquidity need were to arise, the Company believes il has access to
requisite financial and operstional suppart from SAMH] Hotels Limited (holding company), which will enable it to meet s ongoing capital, operating and other liquidity

requiremenis,

In view of the above, the management and the Board of Directors believe that the Company will be able to meet all its contractual obligations and lisbilities as and when they fall due
in near future and accordingly, these financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis
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f

50 During tinancial year 2020-21, the Company scrapped the plan for construction of Goregaon hotel (Murbai, Maharashtra) and hence capital work in progress in refation to same amounting
19 TNR. 12.62 had been wrilten off as an exceplional item ta the Smtement of Profit and Loss. During the previous year, the Company had terminated the lease agreement for Goregaon
(Mumbai, Mabarashira) property. Accordingly, additional amortization charge of INR. 15,34 was recorded on ROU assets and security deposit amounting to TNR 24.00 was rafunded by

s

51 New standards and interpretatioms, not yet adopted

lessor.

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA™) notifics new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies ([ndian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from 1ime to time.
On 31 March 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, gpplicable from 1 April 2023, as below:

Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements: This amendment requires the entities fo disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies. The
cffective date for adeption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or afier 1 April 2023. The Company has evalwated the amendmeni and the impact of the amendment is
insignificant in the Company®s financial statements.

Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Acceunting Estimates and Errors: This amendment has introdured g definition of *accounting estimates® and included amendments to Ind AS 8
to help entities distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates, The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual peiods beginning oo or after 1
April 2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its financial siatements.

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes: This amendment has namrowed the scope of the initial recognition exempiion so that it does not apply to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting
temporary differences. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is ennual periods beginning on or afier 1 April 2023, The Company has evalusted the amendment and there is no

impact on its Tinancezl statements,

521 Raties as required by Schedule ITI to the Companies Aet, 2013:

Return en Equity Ratio
Trade pavables turnover ratio
Net capital mmover ratio

Net profit matio

Return on Capital employed

Lower due to increase in bosses in the current year.
Increased due to increase in business activity during the vear
Decreased due to decrease in averape working capital during the year.
Improved due to improvement in business activity during the year.

Improved due to improvement in operating margin during the year.

The Company has not presented the following ratios due to the reasons given below:
{2) Inventory turmover ratio: Since the value of inventory is insignificant a5 compared to the total assets.
(b} Refurn on investments: Since the Company invests surplus temporary fimds in short term bank deposits and the income generated is insignificant to fotal turnaver.

Ratio In timess Numerator Dencminator 31 March 2023 31 March 2021 Incressef derrease %%
Current Ratio In times Total current assets ‘Total curvent liabilities 04 1.3 -72%
Debt-Equity Ratio In times Total Borrowings Total cquity 13.9 2.0 580%
Debt Service Coverage Ratie In times Eamings before  finance| Interest Payments + Principal 0.1 0.0 11182%
cost, depreciation  and|Fepayments
amortisation and tex
Return on Equity Ratio In% Loss for the year Average Total equity -135% -58%| 97%
Invenlory humover ratio In times Cost of goods seld Average [nventory NA NA MA
Trade Receivables tunover ratio In times Revenue from operations | Average Trade Receivables 330 282 17%
Trade payables wmover ratio In times Cost of materials| Average Trade Payables 50 29 1%
consumed + hex
EXpenses
Net capital turmover ratio In times Revenue from operations |Average Current assels - {13 {0.4) 1730%
Average Currens liabilities
Net profit ratio In % Loss for the vear Revenue from operations 4% -120%| -A7%|
Retum on Capital employed In% Loss before finance costs| Tangible Net Worth + Total % -5% -255%
and taxes Borrowings
Return on investent In %o Initerest (Finance Incoma) |Investment NA NA NA
Explanations to variance in Ratios:
Ratio Remarks
Current Ratio Lower due {o increase in current borrowings and decrease in cash and bank balances.
Debt-Equity Ratio Improved due to increase in debt and reduction in other equity dug 1o bosses.
Debt Service Coverage Ratio Improved dug to increase in earnings before finance cost, depreciation amd amortisation and ax.
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53 Other statutory informatioa

(i) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been iniliated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.

{if} The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off.

{iii) The Company doss not have any Chargss or satisfaction which is yet to be registeced with ROC beyond the statotory period.

{iv) The Company has not traded or invested in Cryplo currency or Virlual Currency during the financial year.

(v} The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds fo any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreipn entities {Inlermediaries) with the understanding that the Inlermediary

shall:
(a) direetly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entitics identified in any manner whatseever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

{vi) The Company has not recetved any fimd from any person(s) or entity(ies), including forgign entities (Funding Party) with ile understanding {whether recorded in writing or otherwise)

that the Company shall:
(a) directly or indireetly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Uitimate Beneficiaries) or

{b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
{vii) The Company has not entered any such transaction which is pot recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclesed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 {such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).
{viii) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulier by eny bank: or financiel institution or government or any government authorily.
{ix) The Company has not granted eny loans or advances in the nature of loans to promoters, direetors, KIviP's and the related parties (es defined ander Companies Act, 2013 erther severally
or joinily with any other persan that are repayable on demand or without specifying any 1erms or period of repayment,
(x) The Company has vsed the borrowings from bank and financial institution for the specific purpose for which it was taken,
(i} The Company has complied with number of Tayers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.
(i) The Company bas not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous financial year,
[wiii) The Company hias not revalued its property, plant and equipment or intangibe assets or both during cumrent or previous year
{xi¥) The Company is nod required to submit quarterly returns or statements with banks during the current or previous year.
(xv] The tifle deeds of immovable property disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company. However, originel iitle deed are under lien with lender.

54 Impairment of asset

Iperirmend tesing Jor casli-generating units

In accordance with Ind AS 36 "Impainment of Assets', the Company had identified individual hotels {consisting of property, plant and equipment and imtangible assets) as a separate cash
generating unit for the purpose of impairment review. Management periodically hether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired using a comparison betwesn carmying
velue of assets in books and the recoverable value. Recoverable value is considered as higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use,

Recoverable amount as at 31 March 2020 is value in use of the helel and is based on discoimted cash fow methad which was classified as a level 3 fair value in the fair valus hicrarchy due to
the mclusicn of one or more unobservabla inputs. There has been no chenge in the valuation technique a5 comparad to previous years.

Bazed on the results of impairment testing performed as at 31 March 2020, the written down value of cerlain hotels was redoced to receverable values as mentioned below,

Asset Carrving value Recovershble value Impairment boss
Helidey Inn Express - Pune,
Hini 5 211.38 [78.59 3279
Holiday Inn Express - Pune, Pimpri 456,91 374.86 8205
Holiday Inn Express - Naghik, 21419 169.13 45.06
Ambad
Hotiday Inn Express - Chennai,
OME. 587.91 494.61 9330
Holiday Inn Express - Hyderabad, 455.12 41119 4393
Banjara Hills
Total 1925.51 1628.38 297.13

[n view of the management, the primary reasons for recognition of impairnient loss in respect to the aforementioned holel properlies were high cammying value of property, plani and
equipmant due {3 deemed cost on land recorded in books in prior years and certain operational #ssues af the hotel

During the current year, based on the impairment analysis carried out by the management, no further impairment loss is required to be recorded in the financial statements.

The key assumptions used in the estimation of the recoverable amount are set out below,

Assumptions
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Discount rat= Pre tax / Post Tax 12.34% 4 12.15% 1222% 1 11.70%
Average Room Revenue (ARR) growdh rale 4% to 14% 4% to 88%
Termina! Value multiple 14 times 14 times
Qccupancy rate 9% - B2% 21% - 82%

Based on the impaimment testing performed, the management believes that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions would pot cause the recoverable amount to be lower than
carrying amount of the CGLL

55 Through issue of non-conventible debentures (refer Note 20, the Company has received an amount of [INR 2,850.00 on 25 October 2021 from Sarvara Investment Fund 1. As per the lerms of

Debenture Trust Deed with Sarvara Investment Fund I dated 22 QOctober 2021, amount INR 53,20 had to be utilised fiw part financing the capital expenditure for developing and
operationalizing the under construction Kolkata praperty of Paulmech Hospitality Private Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary company. The borrowings received from Sarvara Investment
Fund [ is refinanced by Citibank, N.A and Citicorp Finance India Ltd. {“CFIL™), during financial year 2022-23 and no condition for wilising the ampunt INR. 53.20 exist as on 31 March
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56 As per the MCA Notification dated 06 August 2022, the Central Government has aotified the Companies (Accounts) Feurth Amendment Rules, 2022, As per the emended rules, the
Company is requited to maintain a backup of the books of account and other relevant books and papers in electronic mode that should be aceessible in India at all the time. Also, the
Company is required to create backup of accounts on servers physically located in India on a daily basfs,

The books of aceount slong with other relevant records and papers of the Company is maintained in slectronic mode, across all hotels. These are readily accessibls in India at all imes and
currently a backup is maintzined on a clowd based / physicel server. Such servers are located in India

The notas from Mota | to Wote 56 form an istagral part of these financial staements
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